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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Ninety-Sixth Annual General Meeting of the Members of NKGSB Co-operative Bank Ltd., 

Mumbai, will be held on SATURDAY, THE 15th JUNE, 2013, AT 4.30 P.M. AT INDIAN EDUCATION SOCIETY’S 

PRACHARYA B. N. VAIDYA SABHAGRAHA, HINDU COLONY, DADAR (E), MUMBAI- 400 014 to transact the following 

business :

1. To receive and adopt the Statutory Auditors’ Report, the Directors’ Report, Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March,

2013, Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31st March, 2013 and Notes to Accounts.

2. To approve appropriations of Profit and to declare dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2013. 

3. To appoint Statutory Auditors up to the conclusion of 97th Annual General Meeting and authorise the Board to fix their

remuneration.

4. Any other business that may be brought forward with the permission of the Chair. 

May 18th, 2013 By order of the Board    

Regd. Office   : Laxmi Sadan,              

361, V.P. Road,         

Girgaum,      CHINTAMANI NADKARNI 

Mumbai 400 004                  Managing Director

NOTE: * If there is no quorum at the appointed time, the meeting shall stand adjourned to 5 p.m. on the  same  day  at the 

same venue, at which time the  members present shall constitute the quorum in terms of Bye-Law No. 32 (iii) and 

the agenda of the meeting shall  be transacted.

* As per Rule No. 18 of the Multi-State Co-op. Societies Rules, 2002, the Minutes of the 95th Annual General 

Meeting held on 23rd June, 2012 were duly approved by the Board of directors in its meeting held on 21st July, 

2012 and copies thereof were made available at the branches and the Registered Office.

* Copies of the Annual Report are made available at the Registered Office as well as all branches of the Bank.

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

APPEAL TO MEMBERS

1. If any member desires to have any information in connection with the accounts, he is requested to intimate to the 

Managing Director at the Registered Office, AT LEAST SIX DAYS in advance of the Annual General Meeting so that the 

necessary explanation or information can be easily made available.

2. In case of those members who have Bank accounts in NKGSB Co-operative Bank Ltd., the dividend amount will be 

credited to their accounts, if written instructions are given to us to that effect. Where the dividend warrant stands in the 

joint names, such instructions are required to be signed by all the joint holders. Please inform us your account number 

and the branch where it is operated and mail the form to our Share Department. Members are also requested to intimate 

change of address to Share Department.

3. Many members have not collected their past dividend amounts for the year 2009-10 and onwards, in spite of repeated 

notices given in Annual Reports. They are requested to collect the same before 30.06.2013 otherwise unclaimed 

dividend for a period exceeding 3 years is liable to be forfeited and credited to Reserve Fund.

4. Members are requested to avail nomination facility by submitting Nomination form duly completed to the Share 

Department.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

In my last year’s statement I had stated that the newly constituted Board will continue to make all efforts 

for progress and prosperity of the Bank.  We have accordingly continued these efforts during the year.

We had also stated in the previous year’s Directors' Report that “the Growth and Industrial pattern does 

not leave much room for monetary policy easing without aggravating Inflation risk.  The recent sharp 

depreciation of the rupee, the steep increase in fuel prices and declining GDP growth are matters of 

concern for Indian Economy.”  The Economic situation continued to show further recessionary trend 

during the year.  The Inflation rate has gone up to an estimated rate of 7%, the Rupee has declined from 

` 50.38 to  54.30 per dollar, GDP growth declined from 6.2% to 5.0%.

In spite of all the difficulties faced by the Indian Economy and consequently the Banking Business, your Bank has faced the 

challenges and defied these recessionary trends with following achievements.

1. The Bank has achieved Business Mix (Deposits & Advances) growth of 16.4% as against 15% growth envisaged by 

Reserve Bank of India.  The Advances have increased by 22.6% and Deposits have increased by 12.7%.  The Business 

Mix has increased by ̀  856 Cr (to ̀  6,071 Cr) as against ̀  818 Cr in the previous year. 

2. The CD Ratio (Credit Deposit Ratio) has increased from 60% as on March 31, 2012 to 66% as on March 31, 2013.

3. There has been an increase in Net Profit from ̀  36 Cr to ̀  43 Cr.   However, the operating profit has remained at ̀  63.5 Cr 

due to increase in Interest expense and other operating costs including salaries and wages due to inflationary trends and 

revision. An increase in NPAs, as explained below, has also restricted interest earnings to an extent.

Quality of Assets - Non Performing Assets (NPA) has been a matter of concern for the banking business as a whole.  The Gross 

NPA of the country’s largest Bank has increased to 4.75% as at 31.03.2013.  Your Bank’s gross NPA have increased to 3.93% 

for the year ended 31.03.2013. This is due to numerous factors generally due to economic slowdown internationally as well as 

in India. Infrastructure related projects have not come up due to regulatory and environmental constraints. Automobile related 

ancillary businesses are facing problems due to general slackness in the Automobile Industry. Out of total Gross NPA, most of 

them have been soft NPAs either backed by security and / or realizable in the short run.  The Bank’s Board has been seized of 

the situation and are making conscious efforts to control NPA’s through the “Recovery Committee” consisting of Directors  and 

Senior Executives . 

As per the Business Plan of 2011-12 approved by RBI, the Bank launched 20 new branches, making its Branch network touch 

65 branches.  As per Business Plan 2012-13, approval was given by RBI for 15 new branches. Out of this, 4 branches have 

been opened so far, making a total of 69 branches.  The remaining 11 branches will be opened in the next few months.  

Permission from RBI to open 15 branches under the Business Plan for 2013-14 is awaited.

As I stated earlier, this was a challenging task in terms of identifying the right location, right premises, extending of technology 

and processing support and more importantly the manpower.  For any new branch to achieve profitability takes about two to 

three years.  This requires a lot of marketing efforts in terms of Deposits and Advances and other services.  With this in mind, 

your Bank has established “Business Development and Marketing Department” headed by Senior Executives and other 

Marketing staff.

Your Bank had allocated substantial resources to build up its brand image.   Brand building through Television commercials 

was for the first time used in a big way. As a fillip and to further increase the visibility of the Bank’s Brand, Out of Home (OOH) 

`



media like AC bus, Bus Back panel, BEST Bus back seat branding, Railway Foot Over Bridge branding etc. were also used. 

Your Bank’s gantry on the Mumbai Pune express way is reaching out to a lot of people using the expressway. The Bank also 

reached out to people through direct door to door marketing activities. Branches also conducted various meets like Doctors 

meet, CA meet, Traders meet, Students meet to reach the target audience directly and explain them about the Bank and its 

products. 

These efforts have yielded impressive results in Bank’s area of operation, namely in the states of Maharashtra, Karnataka, 

Goa and Gujarat.

The Bank has received from Reserve Bank of India (RBI) permission for Internet and Mobile Banking.  Internet Banking facility 

‘QuickNet’ has been made operational. Trial runs are being completed for Mobile Banking facility ‘QuickMobil’ and will be 

offered to our account holders very shortly. Thus, the Bank is opening new channels of delivering banking services.

The ATM cardholders of the Bank already have access to RUPAY network consisting of over 1 Lac ATMs across the country. 

The Bank is also considering introducing Debit card facility for its customers. 

As the Bank approaches its 100th year, it aims to offer modern banking facilities combined with a personal touch. 

The Bank will receive AD-I license for Foreign Exchange shortly from RBI.  Under AD-II license operations, which was 

operational in our bank for the last few years, the bank was allowed to  do sales and purchase of Foreign currency notes, 

foreign remittances for permissible transactions, opening of NRE account.

However with AD I license the Bank is directly allowed to do Foreign Exchange Transactions like opening of Import letter of 

credit, Buyer’s credit, Export finance in Foreign currency & Rupee.

This department will be operational shortly which will add substantially to the revenues of the Bank. 

AD-I license requires the Bank to maintain CRAR consistently at 12% as against the present benchmark of 9%.  Besides, the 

Bank has to maintain Robust networth considering the Bank’s ambitious growth plans and highly competitive environment.  

This all necessitates  retaining more profits for future.  Inspite of all these factors, your Board has decided to maintain dividend 

at 15%.

All these achievements would not have been possible without the active and continuous support of you members as well as 

customers, employees, regulators and other associate partners.  I am grateful to them.  I am also grateful to the members of 

the Board for their immense contribution and relentless support extended to me.

I now request you all to approve the Directors’ report, Audited Profit and Loss Account and Balance Sheet which are placed 

before you.

Mumbai Kishore Kulkarni
May 18, 2013 Chairman
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Your Directors have great pleasure in presenting the Ninety-Sixth Annual Report together with the audited accounts for the 

financial year ended March 31, 2013.

MACROECONOMIC LANDSCAPE

The global economy has yet to recover from the crisis. The global growth dropped to almost 3% in 2012 which indicates that 

about a half a percentage point has been shaved off the long term trend since the crisis emerged. Mature economies are still 

healing the scars of the 2008-09 crisis. 

Much of the global economy was in a synchronised slowdown having lost the upward momentum seen in the early months of 

the year. The situation in the euro zone also continued to be a cause of concern. The global growth prospects deteriorated 

further and downside risks increased in the second quarter even as monetary policy in the advanced economies remained 

positive. However, headwinds holding back the global economy began to abate gradually from third quarter. The main source 

of acceleration was Emerging Market Economies (EMEs). As also, the United States, where growth surprised on the upside, 

the financial conditions stabilized. Signs of stabilization in the global economic activity were also evidenced by acceleration in 

the pace of activity in China and pick-up in industrial production in Emerging & Developing Economies (EDEs) in Q4. 

Against this backdrop, the projections in the World Economic Update stated that global growth will strengthen gradually 

through 2013 averaging 3.5% on an annual basis, a moderate uptick from 3.2% in 2012 and 4.1% is projected for 2014.

BANKING SCENARIO

The growth inflation dynamics prompted the Reserve Bank of India to indicate that no further tightening was required and that 

the future actions would be towards lowering the rates. As such, RBI, in its monetary policy intended to adjust the policy rates to 

level consistent with the growth moderation, to guard against the risks of demand laid inflationary pressures reemerging and to 

provide greater liquidity cushion to the financial system. Accordingly 

RBI reduced the repo rate under the liquidity adjustment facility (LAF) by 50 basis points from 8 to 7.50 percent.

The reverse repo rate under the LAF was adjusted to 6.50 percent

The Marginal Standing Facility (MSF) rate, determined with a spread of 100 basis points above the repo rate was 

adjusted to 8.50 per cent

CRR was reduced from 4.75 to 4%

The statutory liquidity ratio (SLR) of scheduled commercial banks was reduced from 24% to 23% of their NDTL. 

Other key policy guidelines issued by RBI were

UCBs were advised to initiate steps for allotting Unique Customer Identification Code (UCIC) to all their customers while 

entering into any new relationships for individual customers to begin with. Similarly, existing individual customers were 

also required to be allotted UCIC by end-May 2013. 

Primary (Urban) Co-operative banks were advised to complete the process of risk categorization and compiling / 

updating profiles of all of their existing customers in a time-bound manner, and in any case not later than end-March 

2013. 

RBI has removed foreclosure charges / prepayment penalty on home loans.

RBI has increased the norms for exposure on unsecured lending from 10% to 25% subject to approval by RBI.

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•
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•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

RBI has advised to put in place Board approved transparent policy on pricing of liabilities

Banks are advised to ensure readiness for the Cheque Truncation System (CTS) being established in phases in different 

grids.

KEY PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS OF F.Y. 2012-13

The performance of the Bank at a glance is as follows:

     (` in Cr.)

The business mix has grown by ` 856 Cr in 2012-13 as against ` 818 Cr in 2011-12. Your Bank crossed a milestone of 

` 6,000 Cr in Business Mix.

Looking at the steep rise of deposits in the first half with comparatively lesser credit off-take, a conscious decision was 

taken to hold back a little by aligning interest rates suitably. As a result, Deposits witnessed a moderate growth of ̀  412 Cr 

as against rise of ̀  606 Cr in the previous year. 

As off-take of credit was a cause for concern in the first half, focus was shifted to retail sector by introducing a customer 

friendly campaign ‘SWAPNAPOORTI’ in respect of retail products in general, with a thrust on our proven product, 

MEDIFINA in particular. The resultant impact was as desired with advances growth of ̀  444 Cr as against ̀  212 Cr in the 

previous year. CD ratio improved from 60% to 66%. 

Belying hopes of recovery, Industrial growth rate has slipped to 5%. SMEs surely were adversely impacted and with the 

peculiarity of SMEs needing time to dilute the assets for overcoming financial crisis, the Gross Net Performing Assets 

(NPAs) increased from ̀  47.28 Cr to ̀  94.48 Cr. 

Operating Profit has remained at ` 63.5 Cr primarily on account of increase in cost of deposits, increase in operating 

expenses including salaries & wages due to inflation & revision of wages and opening of new branches which are yet to 

start contributing towards operating profit as they are within the normal gestation period. 

Net Profit after tax and provisions increased from ̀  36.01 Cr to ̀  43.46 Cr

Net Interest Margin which was slipping down from 3.6% was contained at 3.4% with timely conscious pricing decisions, 

increasing CD ratio and effective fund management.

Owned funds increased from ̀  414.72 Cr to ̀  451.33 Cr. 

Particulars 2012-13 2011-12 2010-11

Deposits 3666 3254 2648

% growth 13 23 15

Advances 2405 1961 1749

% growth 23 12 28

Business-mix 6071 5215 4397

% growth 16 19 20

Net Profit 43.46 36.01 30.60

Gross NPA 94.48 47.28 49.45

% of Advances 3.93 2.41 2.83

Net NPA 52.56 - 8.98

% of Net Advances 2.22 - 0.53
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•

•

The Profit per employee has increased from T 4.97 Lac to  5.02 Lac. The Business per employee continues to be 

around ̀  7 Cr.

The capital adequacy ratio (CRAR) is at 13.43 % which is well above the minimum required benchmark of 9% prescribed 

by RBI.

CHANGE IN THE FORMAT OF BALANCE SHEET

In order to depict realistic figures of Reserves & Other Funds and Other Liabilities as on the date of Balance Sheet, the Bank, 

with effect from this financial year, proposes to make appropriations from the Net Profit in the same financial year subject to 

approval of the General Body. Consequently, the Appropriation of Profit has been given effect in the Balance Sheet as at March 

31, 2013 and will be done subsequently in every financial year and may be deemed to have been approved as of that date.

APPROPRIATIONS

The following appropriations are recommended for the financial year 2012-13 for your approval under item No. 2 of the Notice: 

                (` in Lacs)

CAPITAL TO RISK ASSET RATIO (CRAR)

Regulatory benchmark for CRAR is 9%. As against the same, your Bank's Capital adequacy ratio stood at a comfortable level 

of 13.43 % which reflects the Bank’s sound financials. The Bank’s Risk Weighted Assets at the end of March 2013 amounted to 

` 2,383.51 Cr against which Capital Funds stood at ̀  320.07 Cr. 

Your Bank has fulfilled all the statutory prerequisites to be eligible to conduct Foreign Exchange Business and the AD I license 

`

Particulars 2012-2013 2011-2012

A) Statutory Appropriations :-

1 Statutory Reserve Fund (25% of Net Profit) 1,087 905

2 Contingency Reserve Fund (10% of Net Profit) 435 365

3 Education Fund ( 1 % of Net Profit) 44 37

B) Other Appropriations :-

1 Building Fund 1,050 1,000

2 Provision for Donations 4 8

3 Investment Fluctuation Reserve 105 0

4 Dividend @  15% p.a. (pro-rata) 865 700

5 Ex-Gratia to Staff 525 375

6 Staff Loan fund 21 15

7 Staff Welfare Fund 21 40

8 Members' Welfare Fund 15 12

9 Centenary Fund 10 15

10 Special Reserve u/s 36 (1) (viii) of I.T. Act 1961 167 194

4,349 3,666

NET PROFIT CARRIED TO BALANCE SHEET 1 0

TOTAL 4,350 3,666
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from RBI is awaited. For consistently maintaining CRAR over 12% which is one of the ongoing criteria to be fulfilled, option to 

raise Tier II capital through subordinated debt will be explored at appropriate time. 

DIVIDEND 

Your Board is pleased to maintain the dividend of 15 % for the year ended March 2013. Total outgoing for dividend will be ̀  8.65 

Cr. as compared to ̀  6.99 Cr. paid for the previous year.

. 

SHARE CAPITAL

The paid up capital of your Bank as on 31.03.2013 was ̀  63.76 Cr.  subscribed by 42,345 members, with addition of 2,639 and 

cessation of 767 members during the year. 

SHARES FORFEITED

The existing share holders who had not complied with the criteria of the minimum share holding of 50 shares as required under 

Bye-law No. 11 (ii) ceased to be a member after 30th June, 2012. Consequently, Bank has transferred the share money to a 

separate reserve fund account viz; “Shares Forfeited “. Such members can claim the share money from the said account within 

a period of three years. Till March 31, 2013, 66 such members have claimed the refund. 

RESOURCE MOBILISATION

         

The Bank’s deposits stood at ̀  3,666 Cr. as on March 31, 2013 registering a growth of 13% with an accretion of ̀  412 Cr. over 

previous year. 

The deposit mix is as under:

                                                                                                                                (` in Cr.)

Type As on 31.03.2013 % As on 31.03.2012 %

Savings 757 20.6 660 20.3

Current 182 5.0 174 5.3

Fixed 2,727 74.4 2,420 74.4

Total 3,666 100.0 3,254 100.0

The positive impact of increased deposit rates in the previous year necessitated by opening of branches in new centers had 

continued in the first half of this year. Aligning of deposit rates was desired so as to control the inflow till the deployment 

avenues improved. The comparatively reduced growth of deposit needs to be seen in this light. In spite of large number of new 

branches where the composition of deposit is generally skewed towards term deposit, the CASA composition has remained 

the same at 25.6%.

RESOURCE DEPLOYMENT

Industrial growth was volatile across all sectors during the year. The seasonally adjusted annualized rate of growth of the Index 

of Industrial Production (IIP), which had shown a nearly flat trajectory, indicated a downward momentum. Hence, it was 

decided to shift the focus on the Bank's forte of retail credit. Introducing ‘Swapnapoorti’, a limited period offer with attractive 

features yielded the desired result. The net growth of overall credit during the year was ̀  444 Cr.
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The composition of Credit portfolio is as under:

       (` in Cr.)

Sector 2012-13 % 2011-12 %

Personal 711 29.6 480 24.5

Trade / Services 1086 45.2 919 46.9

Manufacturing 608 25.2 562 28.6

Total 2,405 100.0 1,961 100.0

Shift of thrust from Trade, Services and Manufacturing sector to retail credit called for by the economic scenario however had 

impact in reducing the NIM from 3.6% to 3.4%. 

ASSET QUALITY

The position of NPA is as under:

        (` in Cr.)

As on 31.03.2013 % As on 31.03.2012 %

Gross NPAs 94.48 3.93 47.28 2.41

Net NPAs 52.56 2.22 0 -

The current economic downturn is proving to be a testing time for banks, with asset quality concerns coming sharply to the fore 

yet again. Overall, the credit profiles of borrowers have weakened in 2012-13 because of the various factors viz. 

moderation/slowdown in demand conditions, compression of operating profitability because of cost pressures and inability of 

companies to pass on the higher costs in a scenario of increasing competitive intensity, higher interest rates, project 

implementation related delays, reduced profitability of new projects (because of competitive pressures, higher feedstock 

prices and higher interest cost) funded with relatively higher leveraging.

In 2010-11, in order to increase the CD ratio with quantum rise in credit deployment, focus was shifted from Retail to SME 

segment. Rise in NPAs while increasing lending to SMEs is inevitable, more so in the sluggish market conditions. As a result, 

the Gross NPAs have increased from ̀  47.28 Cr. to ̀  94.48 Cr. However, it is estimated that over 50% of the increased Gross 

NPAs will be recovered in the first half of the current year. These accounts are also backed by adequate collaterals.

INVESTMENTS

RBI maintained the liquidity pressure in first two quarters with sole aim of keeping inflation under control. Market expectations 

of cut in policy rates were met subsequently with multiple cuts in CRR that helped to infuse liquidity. It was supported by series 

of Open Market Operations (OMOs) and increase in Marginal Standing Facility (MSF) limit which further added some cushion 

to liquidity. 

With favourable response of bond market to the above scenario coupled with increase in volumes, the trading profits during the 

year increased to ̀  3.05 Cr. as against ̀  2.24 Cr. in the previous year. Profit on sale of Held-to-maturity (HTM) securities stood 

at ` 2.03 Cr. as against previous year profit of ` 0.31 Cr. The aggregate investment of the Bank as at March 31, 2012 was 

` 1,320.11 Cr. 
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BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVES

1. Auto-Sweep Account: By introducing Auto-Sweep facility, opportunity was offered to Savings Bank account holders to 

earn higher returns on the funds retained for liquidity.

2. Nishchint: Hassle-free facility offering billing services to the housing societies was launched during the year. 

3. Swapnapoorti: A limited period offer for retail loan products with attractive features fetched desired results.

4. Aadhaar enabled accounts: Enabling linking of the checking accounts to Aadhaar number, the account holders can 

now get direct credit of several benefits viz. Domestic Gas subsidy, Scholarships, State & Central Govt. Salaries, 

Retirement benefits and all such remittances that will be routed to Aadhaar enabled accounts.   

5. Travel Card: Bank has entered into strategic partnership with Axis Bank for issuance of travel currency card in different 

currencies.

6. QuickNet: Internet Banking facility named as ‘QuickNet’ has been launched initially for viewing & will be extended soon 

for virtually all banking activities. 

7. QuickMobil: The technical testing has been completed and the Mobile Banking Facility is ready to be launched soon as 

‘QuickMobil’.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

As a part of Corporate Governance, details of various meetings of Board and Committees, held during the year are given 

below:

No. No. Of Directors Average

of  Meetings in the committee Attendance

Board 19 12 9

Advances & Recovery Committee 51 8 5

Development & Staff Committee 31 7 5

Audit Committee 11 7 4

Investment Committee 10 7 5

AUDIT & INSPECTION

The Audit Committee of the Board gives direction, oversees the total audit function of the Bank and follows-up on the statutory / 

concurrent audit of the Bank. The committee is headed by the chairman of the Bank and comprises of Directors with Banking, 

Accounting and Legal Experience. 

32 branches are following the system of concurrent audit and the remaining branches are put under Internal Audit system. 

During the year, RBI carried out its customary on-sight inspection of the Bank with respect to financial position as on 

31st March, 2012. 

APPOINTMENT OF STATUTORY AUDITORS

In the 95th Annual General Meeting held on 23rd June, 2012, M/s. A. P. Sanzgiri & Co., Chartered Accountants were appointed 

as statutory auditors. They have requested for re-appointment. Being eligible, Board of directors recommends their 

appointment up to the conclusion of next Annual General Meeting. 
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EXPANSION

Beginning the year with network of 64 branches, your Bank has opened 5 more branches this year. With approval for 

11 branches in hand from Annual Business Plan (ABP) 2012-13 and awaiting approval for further branches for ABP 2013-14, 

the branch network will cross 80 branches by 31.03.2014  

 

HUMAN RESOURCE

People are the most valuable asset of your Bank. Your Bank will continue to recruit right people for right job in accordance with 

its business plans and will continue to enhance the employee potential through required training. 797 employees were given 

training by internal faculty, 124 employees were trained under professional trainers and 18 employees were imparted training 

through institutes like CAB and NIBM. As on date, the Bank has staff strength of 865. Your Directors would like to record their 

appreciation of the hard work and commitment of the Bank’s employees. The relation between the Bank’s management and 

the employees continues to be cordial. Negotiations for memorandum of settlement to be entered into with the employees’ 

union are under finalization.

    

TECHNOLOGY 

Electronics and information technologies are rapidly changing the banking and financial services industry. To bring services 

closer to a customer and to guarantee the opportunity to use them anytime a customer wants to, have been the most important 

targets in banking during the last twenty years. Online banking and electronic payment systems allow customers to check their 

balance and update personal information. Development and diffusion of these technologies by financial institutions is 

expected to result in a more efficient banking system. Technology offers institutions an alternative and better delivery channels 

through which banking products and services can be provided to consumers. Increase in capacity of computers, as well as 

developments in communications technology, have altered not only the way information is transferred but also reduced the 

cost of processing and storing information. The continuing development of more and more complicated back-office systems 

would not have been possible without information technology.

New updates brought in by NKGSB are Inter Bank Mobile Payment System (IMPS), Next Generation RTGS system, Cheque 

Truncation System and Internet Banking. Your bank has geared itself up in bringing these new applications to its customers 

enabling them to carry out secure transactions from anywhere and from any device. Customer Care Centre with contact 

number 022-28602000 has been established to enable the customers interact with the Bank, presently operational between 8 

am and 8 pm.  

‘IMPS’ allows any registered customer to carry out funds transfer securely using a SMS / GPRS enabled Mobile Phone. The 

application is very robust and secure. No data is compromised during transit as National Payments Corporation of India 

governs all fund transfers on its network. Fund will be transferred within 2 minutes of initiation securely.

Next Gen RTGS allows large funds transfer quickly through the new application that will be launched by RBI. Funds will be 

transferred with 30 minutes of initiation. Days where physical cheques were required to be moved are being phased out. 

Cheque truncation system will allow only the images of the cheques to be moved to the clearing houses securely for quick 

remittance and clearance. NKGSB will be launching Debit cards for the benefits of its customers allowing them to pay to any 

merchant using their debit card with no requirement of cash.

BRAND BUILDING

Having successfully implemented internal standardisation, bringing a uniform look & feel at all the branches, extensive 
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external brand building activity was taken up. Various media of mass communication were used to reach out to a maximum 

number of our target audience. Brand promotion through television commercials was used for the first time in a big way. To 

further increase the brand visibility, other media like press and Out of Home properties viz. AC bus wrap, BEST Bus backseat 

and back panel branding, railway foot over bridge branding & hoardings were also used. The response and feedback to our 

advertisement campaign on television and other media of mass communication has been highly positive & encouraging. Our 

initiative in creating awareness on Banking on a program ‘Prashn Tumche – Uttar Aamche’ addressed by Managing Director 

and senior executives of the Bank, aired on Akashwani across Maharashtra is well appreciated.

DEPOSIT  INSURANCE

The Bank’s deposits are covered by Deposit Insurance and Credit Guarantee Corporation (DICGC). During the year, the Bank 

paid a premium of ̀  3.30 Cr. to DICGC towards deposit insurance.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY – CSR

As a part of Corporate Social Responsibility, your Bank has been making regular contributions towards education, health and 

other charitable causes.

 

SHETH SHRI SHANTARAM MANGESH KULKARNI MEMORIAL LECTURE

On 28th July, 2012, a talk on ‘Direction of Banking and Financial Sector Regulation Over the Next Decade’ was delivered by 

Ms. Rupa Kudva, MD of Crisil. The audience was ecstatic with the flair with which Ms. Kudva imparted her views through her 

speech and also during the interactive session. The event was organized as a part of Sheth Shri Shantaram Mangesh Kulkarni 

Memorial Lecture Series.  

MEMBERS' WELFARE FUND

The felicitation for meritorious wards of members was held on October 13, 2012. Total prize money of ̀  1.48 Lac was awarded 

to 104 students in recognition of their laudable achievements in academics and sports.

This year in all, 27 members have availed the benefits of the scheme for reimbursement of medical expenses, resulting in 

disbursing an amount of ̀  4.43 Lac. During the year, 74 members also availed the facility for free medical check-up.

BYE-LAW AMENDMENTS  

Subsequent to 97th Amendment Act – 2011 to the Constitution of India the Central Government as well as all the State 

Governments were expected to amend their respective Co-operative Societies Act. But neither The Parliament nor The State 

legislature have passed the necessary amendments so far. All the co-operative institutions including Co-operative Banks were 

expected to amend their Bye-laws to honour the amendments effected in the constitution.

We have already sought directions of The Central Registrar C.S.- New Delhi on the issue pending amendment of Multi State 

Co-operative Societies Act 2002.

Secondly the Gujarat High Court-Ahmedabad in a recent P.I.L. has struck down the 97th Amendment which is now being 

challenged in The Supreme Court by Central Government. 

Since the matter is subjudice, it will be a premature move to amend the Bye-Laws of the Bank.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Shareholders of NKGSB Co-Op. Bank Ltd.

Report on the Financial Statements as required under Section 73 of The Multi State Co-operatives Societies act, 2002 

and Rule 17 of Multi State Co-operative Societies Rule 2002.

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the NKGSB Co.Op.Bank Limited, which comprise the 

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2013 and the Profit and Loss and the cash flow statement for the year then ended and a 

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2. Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements in accordance with Multi State Co-

operative Societies Act, 2002. This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal 

control relevant to the preparation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 

fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 

accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards 

require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 

statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 

material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 

auditor considers internal control relevant to the Bank’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 

order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the 

appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by 

management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

6. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the said accounts together 

with the notes thereon give the information required by the Multi State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002, circulars and 

guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’), from time to time, the applicable Accounting Standards (‘AS’) 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) in the manner so required for the banking companies 

and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

(i) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Bank as at 31st March, 2013;

(ii) in the case of the Profit and Loss Account of the profit for the year ended on that date; and

(iii) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Matters

7. The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account have been drawn up in accordance with the provisions of Section29

of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949
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8. We report that:
(a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were

necessary for the purpose of our audit and have found them to be satisfactory.

(b) the transactions of the Bank, which have come to our notice, have been within the powers of the Bank.

9. In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement comply with the Accounting

Standards prescribed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, to the extent applicable.

10. We further report that:

(i) the Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account dealt with by this report, are in agreement with the books of

account and the returns.

(ii) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Bank so far as appears from

our examination of those books.

For and on behalf of
A.P. Sanzgiri & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.:116293W

Satish Kumar Gupta
Partner
Membership Number: 101134

Place:Mumbai
Date: 18th May, 2013

15

Annual Report
th96



Balance Sheet

As at
31-Mar-12

As at
31-Mar-13     CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES Schedule

(` in Lacs)

SHARE CAPITAL 1  6,376  5,328 

RESERVE FUND , OTHER FUNDS & RESERVES 2  38,757  36,144 

PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT  1  -   

DEPOSITS 3  3,66,572  3,25,366 

BORROWINGS  1,399  -   

PROVISION FOR INTEREST CAPITALISED ON NPA  124  88 

OVERDUE INTEREST RESERVE ON LOANS AND ADVANCES  4,092  3,342 

BILLS FOR COLLECTION  17  36 

BEING BILLS RECEIVABLE

(As per Contra)

INTEREST ACCRUED  394  283 

OTHER LIABILITIES 4  5,977  5,147 

SETTLEMENT CREDIT ACCOUNT (As per contra)  162  524 

(Refer Schedule 13, Note no. 3)

TOTAL  4,23,871  3,76,258 

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 11  12,422  10,409 

Significant Accounting Policies 12

Notes to Accounts 13

Schedules referred to above form an integral part of Balance Sheet

As per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of 

A. P. SANZGIRI & CO.

Chartered Accountants, 

SATISH KUMAR GUPTA

PARTNER (MEMBERSHIP NO: 101134)

Mumbai, 18th May, 2013
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as at 31st March, 2013

CASH AND BANK BALANCES 5  54,720  63,912 

MONEY AT CALL & SHORT NOTICE  -    3,583 

INVESTMENTS 6  97,771  84,478 

ADVANCES 7  2,40,453  1,96,124 

INTEREST RECEIVABLE

a) on Investments and Staff loans 8  4,219  3,440 

b) on Non-Performing Advances  4,092  3,342 

BILLS RECEIVABLE  17  36 

BEING BILLS FOR COLLECTION

(As per Contra)

FIXED ASSETS 9  18,721  17,673 

OTHER ASSETS 10  3,061  2,809 

DEFERRED TAX ASSET (NET)  655  337 

(Refer Schedule 13, Note no. 14)

SETTLEMENT DEBIT ACCOUNT (As per contra)  162  524 

(Refer Schedule 13, Note no. 3)

TOTAL  4,23,871  3,76,258 

As at
31-Mar-12

As at
31-Mar-13

PROPERTY AND ASSETS Schedule

(` in Lacs)

KISHORE KULKARNI

Chairman

GANPATI NADKARNI

Vice-Chairman

CHINTAMANI NADKARNI

Managing Director

SAMIR REGE

Chief Manager (Finance)

RAJAN BHAT

NAGESH FOVKAR

SUNIL GAITONDE

VASUDEV MASUREKAR

KAUSHAL MUZUMDAR

ANIL NADKARNI

NAGESH PINGE

SUJATA RANGNEKAR

Directors
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Profit and Loss Account

Year Ended
31-Mar-12

Year Ended
31-Mar-13EXPENDITURE

Interest on Deposits  27,604  22,532 

Interest on Borrowings  17  17 

Staff Salaries, Allowances and Benefits  4,128  3,226 

Rent, Rates, Taxes, Service Charges, Insurance and Lighting  1,197  940 

Legal and Professional Charges  7  5 

Postage, Telegram and Telephone Charges  138  112 

Travelling, Lodging and Conveyance  46  38 

Audit Fees  63  53 

Repairs and Maintenance  196  201 

Depreciation on Fixed Assets  965  805 

Depreciation on Shifting of Securities  34  23 

Premium on Securities amortised  136  98 

Printing and Stationery  79  86 

Advertisement  237  160 

Sundry Expenses                          875  653 

Bad Debts Written Off  428  12 

Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets  3 

Operating Profit before provisions & contingencies c/f  6,353  6,357 

 42,506  35,318 

Provisions and Contingencies:

A) Bad and Doubtful Debts Reserve  754  814 

B) Contingent Reserve against Standard Assets  180  104 

C) Investment Fluctuation Reserve  9  -   

D) Interest Transferred to Leave Encashment Fund  51  33 

E) Provision for Restructured Advances  11  -   

 Profit Before Tax c/f  5,348  5,415 

 6,353  6,366 

Provision for Taxes:

Income Tax  1,320  1,808 

Deferred Tax  (318)  6 

(Schedule 13, Note No. 14)

Net Profit for the year c/fd  4,346  3,601 

 TOTAL  5,348  5,415

(` in Lacs)

As per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of 

A. P. SANZGIRI & CO.

Chartered Accountants, 

SATISH KUMAR GUPTA

PARTNER (MEMBERSHIP NO: 101134)

Mumbai, 18th May, 2013



for the year ended 31st March, 2013

 Interest and Discount 

 a) Interest on Advances  27,242  24,890 

 b) Income from Investments  7,096  5,975 

 c) Interest on Deposits with Banks  4,802  2,486 

 Commission, Exchange & Brokerage  1,351  1,217 

 Rent on Safe Deposit Lockers  102  78 

 Amortisation of Revaluation Reserve  352  352 

 Bad Debts Provision Reversed  982  12 

Other Income

 a) Profit on Sale of Investments (AFS/HFT)  305  224 

 b) Profit on Sale of HTM Investments  203  31 

 c) Profit on Sale of Mutual Fund  56  3 

 d) Miscellaneous Income  15  6 

 e) Recovery from bad debts Written off  -    43 

 f) Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets  -    1 

   42,506  35,318 

Operating Profit before provisions & contingencies b/f  6,353  6,357 

 Provision no longer required written back from :

 Investment Fluctuation Reserve  -    9 

 6,353  6,366 

 Profit Before Tax b/f  5,348  5,415 

 TOTAL  5,348  5,415 

Year Ended
31-Mar-12

Year Ended
31-Mar-13

INCOME

KISHORE KULKARNI

Chairman

GANPATI NADKARNI

Vice-Chairman

CHINTAMANI NADKARNI

Managing Director

SAMIR REGE

Chief Manager (Finance)

RAJAN BHAT

NAGESH FOVKAR

SUNIL GAITONDE

VASUDEV MASUREKAR

KAUSHAL MUZUMDAR

ANIL NADKARNI

NAGESH PINGE

SUJATA RANGNEKAR

Directors
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Profit and Loss Appropriation Account

Appropriations  subject to Approval in AGM

A) Statutory Appropriations :-

1 Statutory Reserve Fund (25% of Net Profit)  1,087  905 

2 Contingency Reserve Fund (10% of Net Profit)  435  365 

3 Education Fund ( 1 % of Net Profit)  44  37 

B) Other Appropriations :-

1 Building Fund  1,050  1,000 

2 Reserve for Donations  4  8 

3 Investment Fluctuation Reserve  105  -   

4 Proposed Dividend @  15% p.a. (pro-rata)  865  700 

5 Ex-Gratia to Staff  525  375 

6 Staff Loan fund  21  15 

7 Staff Welfare Fund  21  40 

8 Members' Welfare Fund  15  12 

9 Centenary Fund  10  15 

10 Special Reserve u/s 36 (1) (viii) of I.T. Act 1961  167  194 

 4,349  3,666 

PROFIT CARRIED TO BALANCE SHEET 1 0

TOTAL  4,350  3,666 
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Year Ended
31-Mar-12

Year Ended
31-Mar-13EXPENDITURE

(` in Lacs)

As per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of 

A. P. SANZGIRI & CO.

Chartered Accountants, 

SATISH KUMAR GUPTA

PARTNER (MEMBERSHIP NO: 101134)

Mumbai, 18th May, 2013



for the year ended 31st March, 2013

KISHORE KULKARNI

Chairman

GANPATI NADKARNI

Vice-Chairman

CHINTAMANI NADKARNI

Managing Director

SAMIR REGE

Chief Manager (Finance)

RAJAN BHAT

NAGESH FOVKAR

SUNIL GAITONDE

VASUDEV MASUREKAR

KAUSHAL MUZUMDAR

ANIL NADKARNI

NAGESH PINGE

SUJATA RANGNEKAR

Directors
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Year ended
31-Mar-12

Year ended
31-Mar-13

INCOME

Profit of last year b/fd  -    51 

Net Profit for the year b/fd  4,346  3,601 

Excess Appropriation of previous year w/back 4 14

TOTAL  4,350  3,666 

(` in Lacs)



Schedules

As at
31-Mar-12

As at
31-Mar-13

Schedule - 1

Share Capital

 Authorised Share  Capital  20,000  20,000 

20,00,00,000 shares of ` 10/- each

Issued Subscribed and Paid up Capital  6,376  5,328 

6,37,64,538 shares of ` 10/- each

(Previous Year 5,32,76,423 shares)

Schedule - 2

Reserve Fund , Other Funds & Reserves

I Reserves as per Multi-State Co.Op.Soc.Act

(i) Statutory Reserve Fund (25% of Net Profit)  7,404  6,289 

(ii) Contingency Reserve Fund (10% of Net Profit)  2,460  2,025 

(iii) Building Fund  7,367  6,317 

(iv) Reserve for Donation  14  12 

II Reserves as per RBI guidelines

(i) Investment Fluctuation Reserve  1,130  517 

(ii) Contingent Reserve against Standard Assets  975  795 

(iii) Investment Depreciation Reserve  7  7 

(iv) Bad and Doubtful Debts Reserve  4,068  4,796 

(v) Provision  for Restructured Advances  11  -   

III Other Funds as per Bye Laws

(i) Election Fund  45  45 

(ii) Members' Welfare Fund  153  144 

(iii) Centenary Fund  162  152 

IV Others

(i) Special Reserve u/s 36(1) (viii) of I.T. Act  747  580 

(ii) Capital Reserve  4  4 

(iii) Revaluation Reserve  13,025  13,377 

(iv) Shares Forfeited  21  -   

(v) Deferred Tax Reserve  292  292 

V Funds for the benefit of staff

(i) Staff Welfare Fund  110  135 

(ii) Staff Loan Fund  226  205 

(iii) Staff Leave Encashment Fund  536  452 

TOTAL RESERVES (I+II+III+IV+V)  38,757  36,144 
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Schedules

As at
31-Mar-12

As at
31-Mar-13

Schedule -3

Deposits 

I Current Deposits

i) Individuals (Other than Societies)  14,298  13,255 

ii) Societies  55  57 

II Savings Deposits

i) Individuals (Other than Societies)  72,415  63,489 

ii) Societies  3,224  2,532 

III Term Deposits

i) Individuals (Other than Societies)  2,52,112  2,23,085 

ii) Societies  20,581  18,867 

IV Matured Deposits  3,887  4,081 

Total ( I+II+III+IV)  3,66,572  3,25,366 

Schedule-4

Other Liabilities

 i) Unclaimed Dividend  51  54 

 ii) Proposed Dividend  865  700 

 iii) Pay orders Issued   2,112  2,485 

 iv) Others  2,949  1,908 

Total  5,977  5,147 

Schedule -5

Cash and Bank Balances

(i) Cash in Hand  1,999  1,280 

(ii) Balances with Reserve Bank of India  16,182  16,397 

(iii) Balances with State Bank of India & its subsidiary  111  117 

(iv) Current Deposits with  Banks  2,188  1,971 

(v) Reserve Fund Investment  8,350  7,043 

(vi) Investment against Earmarked Funds  1,038  883 

(vii) Fixed Deposits with Banks  24,852  36,221 

Total  54,720  63,912 
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Schedules

As at
31-Mar-12

As at
31-Mar-13

Schedule-6

Investments

(i) Government Securities  96,946  83,528 

(ii) Shares in Co-op. Institutions & Co-op. Hsg. Societies  0.37  0.36 

(iii) P.S.U. Bonds & Bonds of all India Financial Institutions  825  950 

Total  97,771  84,478 

Schedule-7

Advances

I Short Term Loans, Cash Credit, Bills Discounted and Purchased  90,146  70,587 

Of which secured against:

(i) Govt. and Other Approved Securities  13  10 

(ii) Other Tangible Securities  90,059  70,413 

(iii) Personal Sureties  74  164 

II Medium Term Loans :  30,520  30,942 

Of which secured against:

(i) Govt. and Other Approved Securities  19  20 

(ii) Other Tangible Securities  29,919  30,282 

(iii) Personal Sureties  582  640 

III Long Term Loans :  119,787  94,595 

Of which secured against:

(i) Govt. and Other Approved Securities  1,392  26 

(ii) Other Tangible Securities  117,433  93,223 

(iii) Personal Sureties  962  1,346 

Total (I+II+III)  2,40,453  1,96,124 

(includes interest capitalised on NPA)  124  88 

Schedule-8

Interest Receivable

(i) On Investments  3,716  3,038 

(ii) On Staff Advances  395  328 

(iii) On Investments against Earmarked Funds  108  74 

Total  4,219  3,440 
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Schedules

As at
31-Mar-12

As at
31-Mar-13

Schedule-9

Fixed Assets

I Premises

Opening Balance as on April, 1  17,244  16,588 

Add: Additions during the year  1,495  676 

Less: Sales during the year  (24)  (20)

 18,715  17,244 

Less: Depreciation upto last year  1,312  862 

Depreciation for the current year  506  456 

Depreciation  on assets  sold  (11)  (6)

 1,807  1,312 

Sub-Total  16,908  15,932 

II Furniture and Fixtures

Original Cost  as on April, 1  1,436  1,060 

Add: Additions during the year  284  429 

Less: Sales during the year  (29)  (53)

 1,691  1,436 

Less: Depreciation upto last year  571  510 

Depreciation for the current year  156  102 

Depreciation  on assets  sold  (22)  (41)

 705  571 

Sub-Total  986  865 

III Other Fixed Assets

Original Cost  as on April, 1  2,512  1,971 

Add: Additions during the year  261  625 

Less: Sales during the year  (166)  (84)

 2,607  2,512 

Less: Depreciation upto last year  1,636  1,463 

Depreciation for the current year  303  253 

Depreciation  on assets  sold  (159)  (80)

 1,780  1,636 

Sub-Total  827  876 

Total Fixed Assets (I+II+III)  18,721  17,673 

25

Annual Report
th96

(` in Lacs)



Schedules

As at
31-Mar-12

As at
31-Mar-13

Schedule-10

Other Assets

(i) Security Deposits  23  19 

(ii) Lease Deposits  547  534 

(iii) Deferred Revenue Expenditure  35  18 

(iv) Intangible Assets (Software)  81  127 

(v) Others  2,375  2,111 

Total  3,061  2,809 

Schedule -11

Contingent Liabilities

(i) Guarantees and Acceptance  12,380  10,408 

(ii) Income Tax Demand  35  -   

(iii) Others  7  1 

 12,422  10,409 
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CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit as per Profit and Loss Account  4,346  3,601 
Add: Previous year excess provision written back  4 -
Add: Opening balance as per profit & Loss Account  -    357 
Profit Available for Appropriations  4,350  3,958 
Less : Appropriations  4,349  3,958 
Net Profit as per Balance sheet  1  0 

Add:
Depreciation On Assets  613  452 
Software written-off (including DRE)  90  703  70  522 
Add:
Loss (Profit) on Sale of Assets  3 3  (1) (1)

Adjustments for:
(Increase )/ Decrease in Investments  (13,293)  (13,982)
(Increase )/ Decrease in Other Fixed Deposits  5,338  (25,302)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Advances  (44,329)  (21,229)
(Increase )/ Decrease in Interest receivable and OIR  (1,529)  (1,010)
(Increase )/ Decrease in Other Assets  (600)      (672)
Increase/( Decrease )in Funds  3,808  3,728 
Increase/( Decrease )in Deposits  41,206  60,601 
Increase /( Decrease) in Borrowings  1,399  -   
Increase/ (Decrease) in Interest Payable  111  4 
Increase /( Decrease) in Other Liabilities  1,459  (6,430)  2,782  4,920 

Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities (A)  (5,724)  5,441 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets  (2,040)  (1,730)
Payment of DRE  (34)  (7)
Payment for Software  (28)  (126)
Sale Proceeds of Fixed Assets  25  37 
Net Cash Generated from Investing Activities (B)  (2,077)  (1,826)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in Share Capital  1,049  1,237 
Dividend Paid  (685)  (560)

Net Cash generated from Financing Activities (C)  364  677 

Net increase in cash & cash equivalents (A+B+C)  (7,437)  4,292 

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year  35,446  31,155 
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year  28,009  35,446 

Cash & Cash equivalents  31.03.2013  31.03.2012 
Cash in hand & Balances with Notified Banks  18,292  17,794 
Balances with Other Banks  9,717  14,070 
Money at Call and Short Notice  -    3,583 

 (7,437)  4,292

Cash Flow For The Year Ended 31st March, 2013

2011-122012-13Particular

KISHORE KULKARNI

Chairman

GANPATI NADKARNI

Vice-Chairman

CHINTAMANI NADKARNI

Managing Director

SAMIR REGE

Chief Manager (Finance)

RAJAN BHAT

NAGESH FOVKAR

SUNIL GAITONDE

VASUDEV MASUREKAR

KAUSHAL MUZUMDAR

ANIL NADKARNI

NAGESH PINGE

SUJATA RANGNEKAR

Directors
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As per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of 

A. P. SANZGIRI & CO.

Chartered Accountants, 

SATISH KUMAR GUPTA

PARTNER (MEMBERSHIP NO: 101134)

Mumbai, 18th May, 2013



Background:

NKGSB Co-op Bank Ltd. was incorporated in 1917.  The Bank has 69 branches spread over in the state of Maharashtra, Goa, 

Karnataka & Gujarat. The Bank provides various banking products which cater to the needs of both corporate and retail 

customers.

Schedule No. 12 :-

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:-

1. ACCOUNTING CONVENTION:

The accompanying Financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention on 

accrual basis of accounting, unless otherwise stated, and comply with the generally accepted accounting principles, 

statutory requirements prescribed under the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, and the Multi State Co-operative Societies 

Act, 2002, circulars and guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’) from time to time, the applicable 

Accounting Standards (‘AS’) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) and the current practices 

prevailing within the Banking industry in India.

2. USE OF ESTIMATES:

The presentation of financial statements, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, requires 

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues 

and expenses, and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ 

from those estimated. Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are 

prudent and reasonable. Any revisions to the accounting estimates are recognised prospectively in the current and 

future periods.

3. INVESTMENTS :

For presentation in the Balance sheet, investments are classified under the following heads as required under RBI 

guidelines – Government securities, other approved securities, Shares in co-operative institutions/Financial 

Corporations, Bonds of Public Sector undertaking and other Investments, in accordance with Third Schedule to the 

Banking Regulation Act, 1949.

3.1  Accounting and Classification

Investments are classified into three categories viz; ‘Held To Maturity’ (HTM), ‘Available for Sale’ (AFS) and ‘Held 

For Trading’ (HFT). This classification is in accordance with the guidelines on Classification and Valuation of 

Investments for all Primary (Urban) Co-operative Banks issued by the RBI.

3.2  Valuation of Investments

a) Investments in HTM category are valued at acquisition cost unless it is more than the face value in which 

case the premium (if any) paid on the investments under this category is shown under “Other Assets” and is 

amortised over the period remaining to maturity.

b) Investments under AFS and HFT categories are valued scrip-wise at lower of Book Value and Market Value 

and depreciation/appreciation is aggregated for each classification. Net depreciation, if any, is provided for 

while net appreciation, if any, is ignored.

c) Treasury Bills under all categories/classifications are valued at carrying cost.

d) Shares of Co-operative Institutions and Financial Corporations are valued at cost unless there is a 

diminution in the value thereof in which case the diminution is fully provided for.

e) Market Value of Securities is determined in terms of Yield to Maturity (YTM) method indicated by Fixed 

Income Money Market & Derivatives Association of India (FIMMDA).

f) Broken period interest in respect of investments purchased is treated as an item of expenditure under the 

Profit and Loss account.
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3.3  Transfer between categories : 

Reclassification of investments from one category to another, is done in accordance with RBI guidelines and any 

such transfer is accounted for at the acquisition cost/book value/market value, whichever is lower, as at the date of 

transfer. Depreciation, if any, on such transfer is fully provided for.

4.  ADVANCES:

a) The classification of advances into Standard, Sub Standard, Doubtful and Loss assets as well as 

provisioning on Standard Advances and Non  Performing Advances is arrived at in accordance with the 

Income Recognition, Assets Classification and Provisioning Norms prescribed by the RBI from time to time. 

Certain advances have been kept outstanding at nominal amounts to continue the charge on securities in 

respect of other standard facilities enjoyed by them with the Bank. Accordingly, these advances are 

classified as Standard Assets.

b) The Bank has been lending under Collateralised Borrowing and Lending Obligations (CBLO) facility. Any 

lending under this facility repayable beyond 15 days is classified under Advances (Short Term) Secured 

against Government and Other Approved Securities.  Other lending repayable within 15 days is classified 

under “Money at Call and Short Notice”. 

c) The Bank  also makes provision for diminution in fair value of Restructured Advances as per norms issued by 

RBI.

5. Fixed Assets and Depreciation

a) Fixed Assets, other than those that have been revalued, are carried at historical cost less depreciation 

accumulated thereon. Cost includes the incidental stamp duty, registration charges and civil work in case of 

ownership premises, and in case of other fixed assets, amounts incurred to put the asset in a working 

condition.

b) Depreciation is provided on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset at the rates 

mentioned below:

Assets % of Depreciation

Computer 33.33%

Land and Building 2.5%

Furniture and Fixture 10%

Office Machinery (including Air-conditioner) 15%

Vehicles 20%

Leasehold Improvements Annually equally over the primary

period of the lease 

c) Assets purchased during the year are depreciated for the entire year except for those at Branches opened 

during the year, which are depreciated pro-rata on completed month basis from the date of commissioning of 

the respective branch. 

d) Depreciation on vehicle is charged pro-rata on completed month basis. 

e) Assets disposed off during the year are depreciated upto the quarter before the date of disposal.

f) Books are capitalised and depreciated to Re.1/- per book in the year of its purchase.

g) Depreciation on the revalued portion of such assets is included in Depreciation expenses and the 

corresponding amount is reversed from Revaluation Reserve and credited to the Profit & Loss Account.
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6. RESERVE FUND AND OTHER RESERVES:

a) As per the requirement of Multi–State Co-op. Soc. Act. 2002, the Statutory Reserve Fund has been bifurcated into 

3 Categories viz.

�Regular Statutory Reserve (Comprising 25% of Net Profit)

�Contingency Reserve Fund (Comprising 10% of Net Profit)

�Co-operative Education Fund maintained by National Co-operative Union of India (Comprising 1% of Net 

Profit).

b) Membership Entrance Fees and Amounts under Sundry Deposits, Dividend Payable and Pay orders/Demand 

Drafts remaining unclaimed for over 3 years are taken directly to the Statutory Reserve Fund.

c) Interest accruing on investments against certain earmarked funds viz. Members Welfare Fund, Staff Loan Fund, 

Staff Welfare Fund is credited initially to profit and loss account and subsequently transferred to the respective 

funds through appropriation of profits for the year.

d) Bank follows a policy of transferring surplus arising on account of revaluing of fixed assets over their book value to 

Revaluation Reserve.

7. Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Bank and the revenue 

can be reliably measured. Items of income and expenditure are accounted for on accrual basis except the following 

items:-

a) Interest income on Non-Performing Advances, is recognised on cash basis in pursuance with guidelines issued by 

RBI.

b) Commission, Exchange, Brokerage and Locker Rent are recognized as income on upfront basis. 

c) Income from investments is accounted for on accrual basis except dividend on shares of Corporates and Mutual 

Funds, if any, which is accounted for on cash basis.

d) Realised gains on investments under HTM category are recognised in the profit and loss account and 

subsequently appropriated to the Investment Fluctuation Reserves (IFR) in accordance with RBI guidelines after 

netting off Income Tax and Appropriations to the Statutory Reserve. Loss on Sale is recognised in the Profit and 

Loss Account in the year of Sale.

8. Expenses:-

Prepaid Expenses are appropriated for the period for which they are incurred except in case of insurance, which is fully 

charged to the Profit and Loss account on payment basis.

9. OVERDUE INTEREST RESERVE:

a) Overdue Interest Reserve (OIR) represents unrecovered interest on Non-performing Advances, which is 

correspondingly shown under Interest Receivable as per RBI directives.

b) Provision for Interest Capitalised on Non-Performing Assets represents unrecovered interest on Non-performing 

Advances which was reversed from profit & Loss Account as per RBI directives.

10.  DEFERRED REVENUE EXPENDITURE (DRE):

Stamp Duty & Registration expenses of leased premises are written off equally over the primary period of the lease. 

11. CONVERSION OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE:

Letters of Credit in foreign currencies are being stated at year-end rates of exchange as notified by Foreign Exchange 

Dealers Association of India (FEDAI).
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12. RETIREMENT BENEFITS:

a. Gratuity

Retirement Benefit in the form of Gratuity is a Defined Benefit Plan. The Bank has a Gratuity Trust for its Employee 

under the group Gratuity cum Life Assurance Scheme managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC). 

Gratuity is provided for on the basis of actuarial valuation done by an independent actuary as at the year end, using 

the Projected Unit Credit Method in accordance with Accounting Standards (AS)-15 (revised) on Employee 

Benefit as issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).

b. Compensated Absences (Leave Encashment)

Employee Leave Benefits in the nature of Privilege Leave is a defined benefit plan. Employees are not entitled to 

encashment of sick leave. Casual leave is en-cashed at the year end and not carried forward. Privilege leave 

which is en-cashable is provided for on the basis of actuarial valuation done by an independent actuary as at the 

year end using the Projected Unit Credit Method in accordance with the guidelines on AS-15 (revised) on 

Employee Benefits as issued by ICAI.

c. Provident Fund contribution

Retirement Benefit in the form of Provident Fund is a Defined Contribution Plan and contributions made to the 

Commissioner of Provident Fund at rates prescribed in the Employees Provident Fund and Misc. Provisions Act, 

1952 are accounted for on accrual basis.

d. SUPERANNUATION CONTRIBUTION

Contribution towards superannuation scheme of LIC is accounted for on accrual basis as a Defined Contribution 

Plan.

13. SEGMENT REPORTING

In accordance with the guidelines issued by RBI, Bank has adopted Segment reporting as under:

a. Treasury includes all investment portfolio, profit/loss on sale of investments (Bonds and government securities). 

The expenses of this segment consist of interest expenses on funds borrowed from external sources as well as 

internal sources and depreciation/ amortization of premium on Held to Maturity investments.

b. Other banking Operations include all other operations not covered under Treasury operations.

14.  OPERATING LEASES

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased asset are 

classified as Operating Leases. Operating Lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Profit and Loss 

Account during the year as per lease agreement. 

15.  EARNING PER SHARE (EPS):

Basic Earning per share is calculated by dividing the Net Profit or Loss for the period by the weighted average number of 

shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of shares are calculated on monthly basis.

16.  DEPOSITS FOR SERVICES:

Security Deposits for electricity and telephone services are written off equally over a period of 5 financial years.

17.  INCOME TAX:

a. Income Tax expense comprises of Current Tax, and Deferred Tax. Current Tax is provided for and Deferred Tax is 

accounted for in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and Rules framed there 

under.

b. Provision for Current Tax is made on the basis of estimated taxable income for the year.

c. Deferred Tax is recognised on account of timing differences between the book profits and the taxable profits. The 

tax effect of timing differences between the book profits and taxable profits measured using the tax rates and tax 
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laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the Balance Sheet date are reflected through Deferred 

Tax Asset (DTA)/Deferred Tax Liability (DTL). DTA is recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable 

certainty that the asset would be realized in near future.

18.  INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible Assets consist of Computer Software Expenses which are amortised equally over a period of 3 financial years. 

In respect of new branches same are amortised on pro-rated basis for completed months.

19.  PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

The Bank makes provisions when it has a present obligation as a result of past event (s), where it is probable that an 

outflow of resources embodying economic benefit to settle the obligation will be required and a reliable estimate can be 

made of such an obligation.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the Financial Statements. 

Contingent liabilities of the Bank are in respect of guarantees, acceptances, and letters of credit with customers under 

approved limits and the liability thereon is dependent upon terms of contractual obligations, devolvement and raising of 

demand by the concerned parties. These amounts are partly collateralised by margins/guarantees/secured charges.  A 

disclosure of Contingent Liability is made when there is a possible obligation, arising from a past event(s), the existence 

of which will be confirmed by occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not within the control 

of the Bank or any present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because it is not probable that an 

outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the 

amount of obligation cannot be made.

20.  IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

The Bank assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired and 

provides for impairment loss, if any, in the Profit and Loss Account.

Schedule No. 13:-

NOTES FORMING PARTS OF THE ACCOUNTS: –

1. Appropriations:- Previously, the Bank gave effect of appropriation of current year profit in subsequent financial 

statement after obtaining approval of such appropriation in Annual General Meetings (AGM) for the said year. To 

provide the shareholder a proper perspective, the bank has from the current year disclosed appropriation of 

current year profit in current year Profit and Loss Account and accordingly re-grouped last year appropriations 

also. 

Proposed Appropriations:

Particulars 2012-2013 

  (` in Lacs) 

Net Profit for F.Y. 2012-13 4,346

Excess Appropriation of previous year w/back 4

Total Profit available for appropriation 4,350

Appropriations :-

Statutory Reserve Fund 1,087 

Contingency Reserve Fund 435 

Education Fund 44 

Building Fund 1,050 

Reserve for Donations 4
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Particulars 2012-2013 

  (` in Lacs) 

Investment Fluctuation Reserve 105 

Special Reserve u/s 36 (1) (viii) of I.T. Act 1961 167 

Proposed Dividend @  15% p.a. (pro-rata) 865 

Ex-Gratia to Staff 525 

Staff Loan fund 21 

Staff Welfare Fund 21 

Members' Welfare Fund 15 

Centenary Fund 10 

Bal c/f 1 

                                                                         TOTAL 4,350 

To facilitate comparison, the appropriation of profits for the year ended March 31, 2012 ( duly approved by the 

shareholders in the 95th AGM held on June 23, 2012) have been reported in above table in the previous year's column, 

through appropriate regroupings. The current year's regrouped figures as on March 31, 2012, vis-à-vis reported figures 

in previous year's Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2012 are shown below -

2. During the year, the Bank has credited an amount of ` 203.01 Lacs being profit on sale of investment held under HTM 

category to the Profit and Loss Account, and an equivalent amount net of tax and transferred to Statutory Reserve is 

appropriated to IFR.

3. Settlement Credit/Debit Account:-

Settlement Debit and Credit Accounts (Contra) represents mirror impact of the cost of acquisition of Shree Shahu Co-

operative Bank ltd. (SSCBL) and the entries pertaining to the Gains / Losses incurred post merger on assets and 

liabilities taken over. 

Particulars Figures as per
Balance sheet

as on March 31, 2012

(` in Lacs)

Regrouped
figures as on

March 31, 2012

Statutory Reserve Fund 6,289 5,385

Contingency Reserve Fund 2,025 1,660

Building Fund 6,317 5,317

Reserve for Donation 12 4

Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) 580 386

Staff Loan Fund 205 190

Staff Welfare Fund 135 95

Member’s Welfare Fund 144 132

Centenary Fund 152 137
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4. As advised by Reserve Bank of India (RBI), during the year, Bank has reversed the write back of ` 5 Cr made from 

Investment Fluctuation Reserve (IFR) being excess over mandatory requirement of 10% of AFS and HFT Securities 

Portfolio. Correspondingly, this amount is debited to Bad and Doubtful Debts Reserve (BDDR).

5. The Bank has written off an amount of Rs. 428 lacs towards bad debts which is identified by the management as 

irrecoverable approved by the Board of Directors and certified by the Statutory Auditors. The same is adjusted against 

Bad and Doubtful Debts Reserve. This amount had been fully provided for in the earlier years. 

6. Shares Forfeited :- The existing shares holders who had not complied with the criteria of the minimum share holding of 

50 shares as required under Bye-law No. 11 (ii) ceased to be a member after 30th June, 2012. Consequently, Bank has 

transferred the share money to a separate reserve fund account viz; “Shares Forfeited “. Such members can claim the 

share money from the said account within a period of three years.

7. Disclosure under AS - 15 “Employee Benefits” Provident Fund :

8. Disclosure under AS - 15 “Employee Benefits” Gratuity :

The following table sets out the status of the Gratuity Plan as required under AS 15. Reconciliation of opening and closing 

balances of the present value of the defined benefit obligation: 

1 Principal actuarial assumptions as at the date of balance date:

 Discount Rate 8.25% 8.50%

 Salary Escalation 6.00% 6.00%

 Expected Return on Plan Assets 9.40% 9.40%

2 Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of present value of obligation

 Present value of obligation as at beginning of the year 10,26,38,731 9,16,45,606

 Interest cost 86,01,262 77,89,877

Current service cost 81,41,309 69,87,367

 Benefit Paid (28,94,824) (59,21,833)

 Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss on obligations 1,34,86,312 21,37,714

 Present value of obligation as at end of the year 12,99,72,790 10,26,38,731

3 Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of present value of plan assets

 Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 9,61,32,178 8,47,48,405

 Adjustment to Opening Fund

 Expected return on plan assets 98,68,751 81,01,302

 Contributions 1,06,27,629 87,93,142

 Benefits paid (28,94,824) (59,21,833)

1 Employment and Retirement Benefits
Post employmet Benefits

Bank's contribution to Provident Fund debited
to Profit and Loss Account 305.83 245.80

SR.
No.

Particulars Provident Fund

31.03.2013 31.03.2012

(  Lacs)`

SR.
No.

Particulars Gratuity Funded

31.03.2013 31.03.2012

 (Amt. `)
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 Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) on plan assets - 4,11,162

 Fair value of plan assets at end of the year 11,37,33,734 9,61,32,178

4 The amounts to be recognised in the balance sheet

 Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 12,99,72,790 10,26,38,731

 Present value of plan assets as at the end of the year 11,37,33,734 9,61,32,178

 Funded Status (1,62,39,056) (65,06,553)

 Net Asset/(Liability) in balance sheet (1,62,39,056) (65,06,553)

5 Expenses Recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss

 Current service cost 81,41,309 69,87,367

 Interest cost 86,01,262 77,89,877

 Expected return on plan assets (93,99,867) (81,01,302)

 Net Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss recognised in the year 1,34,86,312 17,26,552

 Expenses recognised in statement of Profit and Loss 2,08,29,016 84,02,494

9. Disclosure under AS - 15 “Employee Benefits” Leave Encashment

1 Principal actuarial assumptions as at the date of balance date:   

 Discount Rate 8.25% 8.50%

 Salary Escalation 6.00% 6.00%

 Expected Return on Plan Assets 11.00% 9.40%

2 Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of present value of obligation  

 Present value of obligation as at beginning of the year 4,51,75,770 4,00,89,238

 Interest cost 36,17,506 34,04,693

 Current service cost 20,84,581 18,36,955

 Benefit Paid (52,33,749) (62,16,511)

 Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss on obligations 79,27,784 60,61,394

 Present value of obligation as at end of the year 5,35,71,892 4,51,75,770

3 Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of present value of plan assets

 Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 4,53,05,000    4,00,47,000

 Adjustment to Opening Fund - -

 Expected return on plan assets 50,61,128 -

 Contributions 55,33,872 1,14,74,511

 Benefits paid - (62,16,511)

SR.
No.

Particulars Gratuity Funded

31.03.2013 31.03.2012

 (Amt. `)

SR.
No.

Particulars Leave encashement

31.03.2013 31.03.2012

 (Amt. `)
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 Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) on plan assets

 Fair value of plan assets at end of the year 5,59,00,000 4,53,05,000

4 The amounts to be recognised in the balance sheet

 Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 5,35,71,892 4,51,75,770

 Present value of plan assets as at the end of the year 5,59,00,000 4,53,05,000

 Funded Status 23,28,108 1,29,230

 Net Asset/(Liability) in balance sheet 23,28,108 1,29,230

5 Expenses Recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss

 Current service cost 20,84,581 18,36,955

 Interest cost 36,17,506 34,04,693

 Expected return on plan assets (50,61,128) -

 Net Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss recognised in the year 79,27,784 60,61,394

 Expenses recognised in statement of Profit and Loss 85,68,743 1,13,03,042

10. Disclosure under AS - 17 on "Segment Reporting": 

Information about Primary Business Segments:

                                                                       

SR.
No.

Particulars Leave encashement

31.03.2013 31.03.2012

 (Amt. `)

Revenue 12,535.48 29,416.64 41,952.12

Expenses 10,320.07 26,104.91 36,424.98

Result 2,215.41 3,311.73 5,527.14

Unallocated expenses 179.56

Operating profit 5,347.58

Income Tax 1,001.63

Extraordinary profit/loss -

Net Profit 4,345.95

Other Information

Segment assets 1,36,511.89 2,80,974.10 4,17,485.99

Unallocated assets 6,384.66

Total assets 4,23,870.65

Segment liabilities 1,25,866.04 2,54,421.26 3,80,287.30

Unallocated liabilities 460.38

Shareholders’ Funds 43,122.97

Total liabilities 4,23,870.65

(` in Lacs)

BUSINESS SEGMENTS Other Banking
operations

Treasury Total
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Notes: -

The Bank operates as a single unit in India and as such has no identifiable geographical segments subject to dissimilar risk and 

returns. Hence no information regarding the same has been given. The Bank is organised into two main business segments, 

namely:

● Treasury-primarily comprising of Dealing Room operations, trading/investments in Bonds and Government 

securities.

● Other Banking Operations – primarily comprising of Loans and Advances to Corporates, and Retail Loans & 

Advances to Other Customers.

The above segments are based on the currently identified segments taking into account the nature of services provided, the 

risks and returns, overall organisation structure of the Bank and the internal financial reporting system.

Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities include the respective amounts identifiable to each of the segments and 

amounts apportioned/allocated on a reasonable basis.

11. Disclosure under AS - 18 on “Related Party Transactions”: 

The Bank is a co-operative society under the Multi-State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002 and there are no Related 

Parties requiring a disclosure under Accounting Standard 18 issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

(ICAI) other than of the Key Management Personnel.

There being only one Managing Director Shri. Chintamani V. Nadkarni for the financial year 2012-13, in terms of RBI 

circular dated 29th March, 2003, he being a single party coming under the category, no further details thereon need to be 

disclosed.

12. Disclosure under AS - 19 “Leases”:

The Bank has entered into cancellable operating leases for the branches and the disclosures under AS 19 on 'Leases' 

issued by ICAI are as follows:

a) Lease payments of ` 443.88  lakhs have been recognised in the statement of profit and loss for the year being 

minimum lease payments. \

b) The lease agreements entered into pertain to use of premises at the branches. The lease agreements do not have 

any undue restrictive or onerous clauses other than those normally prevalent in similar agreements regarding use 

of assets, lease escalations, renewals and a restriction on sub-leases.

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE” (EPS):

( ̀  in Lacs)

Particulars 2012-13 2011-12

Net Profit/(loss) after income tax 4,346.95 3,600.50

Weighted average numbers of shares 558.66 470.93

EPS 7.78 7.65
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14. Accounting for Taxes on Income:

Disclosure of major components of DTA (net) are as under: 

15. Intangible Assets:

Details of Computer Software Expenses (Intangible Asset) are as under:

(` in Lacs)

CARRYING AMOUNT AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR           ̀  126.53

ADDITIONS DURING THE YEAR `  28.13 

  ̀  154.66

AMORTISATION DURING THE YEAR ` 73.27

CARRYING AMOUNT AT THE END OF THE YEAR `  81.39

16. Impairment of Assets:

The Bank has ascertained that there is no material impairment of any of its assets and as such no provision under 

Accounting Standard 28 issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) is required. 

17. DISCLOSURES AS PER RESERVE BANK OF INDIA (RBI) GUIDELINES :-                                                                           

                                                                                          ( ` In Lacs)

 (` in Lacs)

AS AT DURING THE YEAR AS AT

31.03.2012  2012-13 31.03.2013

DTA

Provision for Advances 370 257 627

Provision for leave encashment 140 26 166

TOTAL 510 283 793

DTL

Depreciation on Fixed Assets 112 26 138

Others (Special Reserve u/s 36

 (1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act 61 (61) -

TOTAL 173 (35) 138

NET DTA/(DTL) 337 318 655

31.03.2012
Sr.
No. 31.03.2013Capital to Risk Asset Ratio (CRAR)

1. A. Tier I Ratio (core CRAR) 10.09% 9.84%

B.  Tier II Ratio  3.34% 3.52%

CRAR 13.43% 13.36%
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2. Movement of CRAR

A.  Tier I Capital 24,039.98 20,505.33

B.  Tier II Capital 7,966.96  7,331.62

Capital Funds 32,006.94 27,836.95

C. Risk weighted assets 2,38,351.30 2,08,426.40

3. VALUES OF INVESTMENTS ARE AS UNDER: 31.03.2013 31.03.2012

Government/ Approved Securities

(Market value) 95,155.72 78,733.42

Bonds of Public Sector Undertakings

(Market value) 823.22 927.64

Other investments    (MSFC Shares)

(Cost value) 0.09 0.09

Shares in Co-operative Institution

(Cost value) 0.28 0.27

TOTAL MARKET VALUE 95,979.31 79,661.42

TOTAL FACE VALUE 98,809.95 85,626.69

TOTAL BOOK VALUE 97,770.98 84,478.43

Investment of Face Value ̀  2,000.00 (Lacs) and Market Value Rs. 1,996.78 (Lacs) as on 31st March 2013 (Market Value P.Y 

1,915.18 (Lacs)) have been lodged with CCIL as Collateral /Settlement Guarantee Fund.

Further, Investment of Face Value ` 2,000 (Lacs) and Market Value ` 1,825.01 (Lacs) as on 31st March 2013 (Market Value 

P.Y. ̀  1,738.51 (Lacs) have been lodged with CBLO as Collateral/Settlement Guarantee Fund.

4. Foreign currency Assets and Liabilities –NIL.

5. There have been no transactions in Repo and Reverse Repo during the current and the previous financial year.

6. Disclosure regarding Non SLR Investments in Bonds as on 31.03.2013.

Issuer Composition :

Extent of 
'unlisted' 
Securities

Extent of 
'unrated' 

Securities

Extent of 'below 
investment grade' 

Securities
AmountIssuerNo.

(` in Lacs)

31.03.2012
Sr.
No. 31.03.2013Capital to Risk Asset Ratio (CRAR)

(1)                               (2) (3) (4) (5) (6)

A. PSUS 825 NIL NIL 125

B. FIS NIL NIL NIL NIL

C. NATIONALISED BANKS NIL NIL NIL NIL

D. MUTUAL FUNDS NIL NIL NIL NIL

E. OTHERS 0.37 NIL 0.37 0.37

F. PROVISION HELD

TOWARDS DEPRECIATION NIL NIL NIL NIL

TOTAL 825.37 NIL 0.37 125.37
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31.03.201231.03.2013

12. Profitability

A.  Interest income as a percentage of  working funds 9.33% 8.96%

B.  Non-interest income as a percentage of working funds. 0.48% 0.43%

C.  Operating profit as a percentage of working funds 1.51% 1.45%

D.  Return on Assets (Net Profit /Average of working funds) 1.10% 1.06%

E.  Business (Deposits + Advances) per employee (` in Lacs) 701.76 720.29

F.  Profit per employee (` in Lacs) 5.02 4.97

31.03.201231.03.2013

(` in Lacs) 

31.03.201231.03.2013

9. 7.96% 7.58%Average cost of deposits

(` in Lacs) 

31.03.201231.03.2013

   10. (NPAs)

a. Gross NPAs 9,448.26 4,728.21

b. Net NPAs 5,256.44 0.00

31.03.20127. 31.03.2013

a. Housing* 36,612.52 27,170.77

b. Construction business  (excluding rent discounting) 7,517.61 10,636.86

c. Other real estate (including Mortgage Loans) 77,860.64 60,431.04

d. Against Shares & debentures 29.83 19.56

*Includes staff housing loans of ` 2,500.27 lacs

(P.Y. ` 1,665.86 Lacs)

Advances to sensitive Sectors Against - 

(` in Lacs)

8. There have been no sanctioned limits to directors (Funded and Non funded) as at 31.03.2013 

(P.Y.– Nil). Advances to directors outstanding as at 31.03.2013 is Nil (P.Y.- Nil).

11. Movements in NPA

Opening Balance – Gross NPA’s as on 01.04.2012 4728.21 4,945.22

Additions during the year (Fresh NPA’s) 6575.50 1664.09

Less: Closed/ Recovered/ Written Off/upgraded 1855.45 1881.10

Closing Balance 9448.26 4,728.21
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   (` in Lacs)

31.03.201231.03.2013

13. Provisions made towards NPA during the year 754.00 814.00

   (` in Lacs)

31.03.201231.03.2013

14. Provisions made towards depreciation

in investments during the year - 0.45

   (` in Lacs)

31.03.201231.03.2013

15. Movement in provisions

A. Towards NPAs

Opening Balance 4,795.78 3,993.43

Additions/Provision during the year 754.00 814.00

Reversal to IFR (500.00) -

Total 5,049.78 4,807.43

Less: Closed/ Recovered/ Written Off 982.17 11.65

Closing Balance 4067.61 4,795.78

B. Towards standard assets 

Opening Balance 795 691

Additions during the year 180 104

Closing Balance 975 795

31.03.201231.03.2013

16. Movements in Investment Depreciation Reserve

Opening Balance 7.03 6.58

Additions during the year --   0.45

Closing Balance 7.03 7.03

17. Movements in Investment Fluctuation Reserve

Opening Balance 516.64 522.39

Additions during the year 508.75 NIL

Appropriations -- 3.00

Amount Transferred 105.00 (8.75)

Closing Balance 1130.39 516.64

   (` in Lacs)
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Restructured Accounts during FY 2012-2013

Housing SME Debt Others

Loans Restructuring

Standard No of Borrowers 0 4 3

Advances Amount Outstanding 0 32.70 78.18

Restructured Sacrifice * 0 1.49 5.12

Substandard No of Borrowers 0 0 0

Accounts Amount Outstanding 0 0 0

Restructured Sacrifice* 0 0 0

Doubtful Accounts No of Borrowers 0 0 0

Restructured Amount Outstanding 0 0 0

Sacrifice * 0 0 0

Total No of Borrowers 0 4 3

Amount Outstanding 0 32.70 78.18

Sacrifice 0 1.49 5.12

(` in Lacs)

18. Restructured Accounts as per RBI master circular no. RBI/2009-10/93UBD. PCB.MC.No. 3 / 
09.14.000 / 2009-10 July 1, 2009 (Annexure - VIII). 

* Diminution in Fair Value

Note: There are no accounts pending for restructuring where applications have been received and not 

approved.

● Previous year figures are re-grouped or re-arranged wherever necessary to conform to the 

presentation of the Current year.
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Amnë`m ~±Ho$Mm 96dm dm{f©H$ Ahdmc d 31 _mM© 2013 `m df©AIoarMm Vmio~§X d Z\$mVmoQ>m nÌH$ Amnë`mnwT>o gmXa H$aVmZm g§MmcH$ 
_§S>img A{Ve` AmZ§X hmoV Amho.

❋Am§Vaamï´ r` Am{W©H  ì`dñWm :

OmJ{VH$ AW©ì`dñWm Am{W©H$ _§XrVyZ AOyZhr nyd©dV Pmbobr Zmhr ̀ mMmM n[aUm_ åhUOo OmJ{VH$ Am{W©H$ ì`dñWoMm XÿaJm_r {Z`mo{OV Xa 
AÜ`m© Q>ŠŠ`mZo Kgê$Z 3% da Ambm Amho.

àma§{^H$ _{hÝ`m§_Ü`o OmJ{VH$ AW©ì`dñWobm {_imbobr JVr hr Z§VaÀ`m H$mimVrb Am{W©H$ KS>m_moS>r_wio _§Xmdbr. ̀ wamo{n`Z Xoem_Ü`ohr hr 
qMVoMr ~m~ R>abr. àJV XoemVrb {dÎmr` YmoaU Oar gH$mamË_H$ am{hbo Var OmJ{VH$ dmT>rMm Xa Imbmdbm d Ë`m AZwf§JmZo `oUmao YmoHo$ 
Xþgè`m {V_mhrV àH$fm©Zo OmUdbo. {Vgè`m {V_mhr nmgyZ Q>ßß`mQ>ßß`mZo OmJ{VH$ AW©ì`dñWoMr KS>r gwairV hmoD$ bmJbr. ̀ mV àm_w»`mZo 
hmV^ma bmJbm Vmo CX`moÝ_wI OmJ{VH$ ~mOmanoR>m, MrZ_Yrb Am{W©H$ ì`dñWoMr JVr d àJVrerb Xoem§_Yrb CX`moJerbVo _Yrb dmT>.

darb nmíd©^y_rda OmJ{VH$ dmT>rMm Xa 2013 gmbr A{YH$ ~iH$Q> hmoD$Z gamgar 3.5% (JVdfuÀ`m 3.2% À`m VwbZoV) BVH$m 
Agob d ̀ m nwT>rb dfm©V (2014) Vmo gamgar 4.10% hmoÊ`mMr eŠ`Vm AW©Vkm§Zr dV©{dbr Amho.

❋ ~±qH J joÌmMm AmT mdm :

Mmby Am{W©H$ dfm©Vrb dmT>r d _hmJmB© ̀ m_wio [aPìh© ~±Ho$bm Amnbr Am{W©H$ YmoaUo {eWrb H$amdr bmJbr. Z{OH$À`m ̂ {dî`mV [aPìh© ~±Ho$bm 
Xam_Ü`o H$nmV H$aÊ`mMr nmdbo CMbmdr bmJVrb. Mmby Am{W©H$ dfm©V Imbrb ~m~r _hËdnyU© AmhoV.

Am{W©H$ dmT>rMr {Z`{_VVm A~m{YV amIUo, MbZ \w$JdQ>çm_wio hmoUmè`m n[aUm_mdaMo Cnm`, Am{W©H$ pñWVr gwYmaÊ`mgmR>r bmJUmar 
VabVoMr JaO `m gdm©Mm {dMma [aPìh© ~±Ho$Zo `§XmÀ`m nVYmoaUmV Ho$bm Amho. OoUoH$ê$Z MbZì`dñWm gwairV hmoB©b. Ë`mgmR>rM [aPìh© 
~±Ho$Zo Imbrb Cnm` ̀ moObo AmhoV.

* YmoaUmË_H$ ì`mOXa 50 _yb^yV A§H$mZr H$_r Ho$bo AgyZ AmYrÀ`m 8% dê$Z 7.50% da AmUbm.

* aonmo aoQ> 6.50% da Zobm

* VabVogmR>r {ZpíMV H$aÊ`mV Ambobm MSF  aoQ> gwÕm 8.50% n`ªV ZoÊ`mV Ambm.

* VabVm gwYmaÊ`mgmR>r CRR hm 4.75% dê$Z 4% da ZoÊ`mV Ambm.

* gaH$mar d ImOJr joÌmVrb ~±H$m§gmR>rMm SLR Mm {ZH$f hm 24% dê$Z 23% da ZoÊ`mV Ambm.

[aPìh© ~±Ho$Zo AmUIrhr H$mhr _hÎdnyU© _mJ©Xe©H$ VËdo AmIbr AmhoV.

* ~±Ho$V ImVo CKS>Umè`m ZdrZ J«mhH$mbm Ë`mMm AmoiIH«$_m§H$ åhUOoM ""`w{ZH$ H$ñQ>_a Am`S>|{Q>{\$Ho$eZ H$moS>'' (UCIC) XoUo VgoM _o 
2013 AIoan`ªV OwÝ`m ImVoXmam§ghr hm H$moS> CnbãY H$ê$Z XoUo.

* _mM© 2013 AIoan`ªV ZmJar ghH$mar ~±H$m§Zr Ë`m§À`m J«mhH$m§Mr _m{hVr nyU©nUo ̂ ê$Z KoUo VgoM Ë`m§À`m ImË`m§Mr OmoIr_ dJ©dmar H$aUo 
Ago {ZX}e [aPìh© ~±Ho$Zo {Xbo AmhoV.

* J¥hH$Om©darb _wXVnyd© naV\o$S>rgmR>r bmJUmam X§S> H$mTy>Z Q>mH$Ê`mMo {ZX}e [aPìh© ~±Ho$Zo ~±H$m§Zm {Xbo AmhoV.

* [aPìh© ~±Ho$Zo VmaUahrV H$Om©À`m à_mUmMm {ZH$f 10% dê$Z 25% n`ªV dmT>{dbm AgyZ Ë`mgmR>r [aPìh© ~±Ho$Mr nyd©nadmZJr 
Amdí`H$ Amho.

* ~±Ho$À`m XoÊ`m§À`m _wë`m§H$Zm§Mo (Pricing of liabilities) nmaXe©H$ YmoaU g§MmbH$ _§S>imH$Sy>Z g§_V H$ê$Z KoÊ`mMo {ZX}e [aPìh© ~±Ho$Zo 
{Xbo AmhoV.

* MoH$ Q´>§Ho$eZ {gñQ>r_ (CTS) `m àUmbrÀ`m A§_b~OmdUr H$aVm Amdí`H$ Agbobr V`mar Q>ßß`mQ>ßß`mV nyU© H$aÊ`mMohr {ZX}ehr 
[aPìh© ~±Ho$Zo {Xbobo AmhoV.

g§MmcH  _§SimMm Ahdmc (g§{já Jmofdmam)
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R>odr 3,666 3,254 2,648
(dmT>rMr Q>¸o$dmar) 13 23 15

H$O} 2405 1961 1749
(dmT>rMr Q>¸o$dmar) 23 12 28

CcmT>mc 6,071 5,215 4,397
(dmT>rMr Q>¸o$dmar) 16 19 20

{Zìdi Z\$m 43.46 36.01 30.60

T>mo~i AZwËnm{XV H$O} 94.48 47.28 49.45
(EHy$U H$Om©er Q>¸o$dmar) 3.93 2.41 2.83

{Zìdi AZwËnm{XV H$O} 52.56 -- 8.98
(ZŠV H$Om©er Q>¸o$dmar) 2.22 -- 0.53

* ~±Ho$Mr EHy$U CbmT>mb Or 2011-12 gmbr é. 818 H$moQ>tZr dmT>br hmoVr Vr 2012-13 _Ü`o é. 856 H$moQ>tZr dmT>br. Amnë`m 
~±Ho$Zo ̀ §Xm 6,000 H$moQ>tMr CbmT>mb H$aÊ`mV ̀ e {_i{dbo Amho.

* `m Am{W©H$ dfm©Vrb n{hë`m ghm_mhrV Pmbobr R>odt_Yrb d¥{Õ d H$O©dmQ>nmMo Ë`mÀ`mer Agbobo à_mU `m§Mr VwbZm H$aVm R>odtdaMm 
ì`mOXa qH$MrV H$_r H$aÊ`mMm YmoaUmË_H$ {ZU©` KoVë`m_wioM JVdfuÀ`m é. 606 H$moQ>tBVŠ`m dmT>rÀ`m VwbZoV ̀ §Xm R>odt_Ü`o Ho$di 
é. 412 H$moQ>tMrM dmT> {XgyZ Ambr.

* n{hë`m ghm_mhrV H$O©dmT>rMo KQ>bobo à_mU bjmV KoD$Z AmnU Amnbo bj [aQ>ob joÌmH$S>o didm`Mo R>adbo, Á`mgmR>r AmnU 
""ñdßZnyVu'' hr ZdrZ J«mhH$mon`moJr ̀ moOZm A_bmV AmUbr. ̀ mM ̀ moOZoA§VJ©V nyduÀ`m ""_oS>r{\$Zm'' ̀ m H$O©`moOZoda ̂ a {Xbm Jobm. 
`m `moOZoMm CÎm_ n[aUm_ åhUOoM JVdfuÀ`m Ho$di é. 212 H$moQ>tÀ`m VwbZoV `mdfu H$Om©_Yrb Pmbobr é. 444 H$moQ>tMr bjUr` 
dmT>. ̀ m_wioM H$O© d R>odtMo dfm©Vrb gamgar JwUmoÎma 60% déZ 66% da nmohmoMbo.

* Am¡Úmo{JH$ dmT>rMm _§Xmdbobm Xa d Am{W©H$ _§Xrbm gm_moao OmÊ`mg bmJUmam doi `m_wio n[aUm_ {XgyZ Ambm Vmo bKwCÚmoOH$m§À`m 
naV\o$S>rÀ`m j_Voda. Ë`m_wioM ‹T>mo~i AZwËnm{XV H$Om©Mr aŠH$_ JVdfuÀ`m é. 47.28 H$moQ>tdê$Z é. 94.48 H$moQ>tda nmohmoMbr Amho.

* ZdrZ emIm§Mm àma§{^H$ IM©, H$_©Mmar doVZdmT> VgoM _wXVR>odrdarb ì`mOXamVrb dmT> `m gd© H$maUm§_wio ì`mdgm{`H$ Z\$m hm 
JVdfuÀ`m 63.5 H$moQ>rBVH$mM am{hbm.

* ZŠV Z\$m JVdfuÀ`m VwbZoV é. 36.01 H$moQ>tdê$Z é. 43.46 H$moQ>tda nmohmoMbm Amho.

* ì`mOXam§~m~V {dMmanyd©H$ {ZU©`, H$O© d R>odtÀ`m JwUmoÎmamVrb dmT>, {ZYtMo ̀ mo½` ì`dñWmnZ ̀ m gdmªMm EH${ÌV n[aUm_ åhUOoM ZŠV 
ì`mOmVrb V\$mdV (NIM) hr JVdfuÀ`m 3.6% À`m VwbZoV ̀ §Xm 3.4% amIÊ`mV ~±Ho$bm ̀ e Ambo.

* ñd{ZYr_Ü`o _mJrb dfm©V é. 414.72 dê$Z é. 451.33 H$moQ>tMr dmT> Pmbr Amho.

Vnerc 2012-13 2011-12 2010-11

❋ 2012-13 `m dfm©Vrc Amnë`m ~±Ho Mr RiH  H m_{Jar : (é. H$moQ>rV)
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* à{VH$_©Mmar Z\$m é. 4.97 bmIm§dê$Z é. 5.02 bmIm§n`ªV dmT>bm AgyZ à{VH$_©Mmar ì`dgm` é. 7 H$moQ>tda H$m`_ am{hbm Amho.

* R>odtÀ`m ñd{ZYr n`m©ßVVoMo à_mU (CRAR) 13.43% AgyZ Vo [aPìh© ~±Ho$À`m 9% ̀ m {H$_mZ {ZH$fmnojm A{YH$ gwÑT> Amho.

❋

~±Ho$À`m J§JmOir, BVa {ZYr d XoUr ̀ m§Mr AMyH$ pñWVr Xe©dÊ`mH$aVm ̀ mdfunmgyZ {e\$mag Ho$boë`m {d{Z`moJm§Mm g_mdoe _mM© 2013

AIoarÀ`m Vmio~§XmV Ho$bm Amho d nwT>rb dfm©Vhr hrM nÕV Mmby R>odÊ`mMo R>a{dbo Amho.

g§MmbH$ _§S>i df© 2012-13 H$aVm ZmoQ>rg H«$_m§H$ 2 AÝd`o Imbrb {d{Z`moJm§Mr {e\$mag Amnë`m _mÝ`VogmR>r H$aV Amho.

{d{Z`moJ :
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Vnerc 2012-13 2011-12
 A) d¡Ym{ZH  {d{Z`moJ :-
1) d¡Ym{ZH$ amIrd {ZYr (ZŠV Zâ`mÀ`m 25%) 1,087 905
2) AmH$pñ_H$ {dnÎmr {ZYr (ZŠV Zâ`mÀ`m 10%) 435 365
3) e¡j{UH$ {ZYr (ZŠV Zâ`mÀ`m 1%) 44 37

 ~) BVa {d{Z`moJ :-
1) B_maV {ZYr 1,050 1,000
2) XoU½`m§Mr VaVyX 4 8
3) Jw§VdUyH$ MT>CVma {ZYr 105 0

4) {Z`mo{OV cm^m§e @15% 865 700
5) H$_©Mmar gmZwJ«h AZwXmZ 525 375
6) H$_©Mmar H$O© {ZYr 21 15
7) H$_©Mmar H$ë`mU {ZYr 21 40
8) g^mgX H$ë`mU {ZYr 15 12
9) eVmãXr {ZYr 10 15

 10) {deof {ZYr (Am`H$a H$m`Xm 1961À`m H$c_ 36 (1) (viii) Zwgma) 167 194
4,349 3,666

Vmio~§XmV Xe©{dbobm ZŠV Z\$m 1 0
EHw U 4,350 3,666

(é. cmImV)

❋

ñd{ZYr n`m©áVogmR>rMm [aPìh© ~±Ho$Mm {ZH$f hm 9% BVH$m Amho nU Amnë`m ~±Ho$À`m ñd{ZYr n`mªáVoMo à_mU 13.43% BVHo$ AgyZ ̀ mVyZ 
~±Ho$Mr gwÑT> AW©ì`dñWm {XgyZ ̀ oVo.

naH$s` MbZ nadmZm d AD-I nadmZm {_iÊ`mgmR>r bmJUmè`m gd© nmÌVm ~±Ho$Zo nyU© Ho$ë`m AgyZ ~±H$ [aPìh© ~±Ho$H$Sy>Z Vo {_iÊ`mÀ`m 
à{VjoV Amho. ho nadmZo {_imë`mda CRAR Xadfu H$_rV H$_r 12% H$m`_ amIÊ`mMr O~m~Xmar ~±Ho$da amhrb. `mgmR>r Amdí`H$ 
AgUmao Q>m`a II ̂ m§S>db CnbãY H$aÊ`mgmR>r bmJUmè`m {d{dY n`m©`m§Mo ̀ mo½` doir {Z`moOZ H$aÊ`mV ̀ oB©b.

❋bm^m§e

_mM© 2013 df©AIoarg 15% bm^m§emMr {e\$mag H$aVmZm g§MmbH$ _§S>imbm A{Ve` AmZ§X hmoV Amho. bm^m§emMr aŠH$_ hr _mJrb é. 
6.99 H$moQ>tÀ`m VwbZoV é. 8.65 H$moQ>r BVH$s Pmbr Amho.

~±Ho Mr ñd{ZYr n`m©áVm :



❋

31.03.2013 amoOr ~±Ho$Mo ^aUm Pmbobo ^mJ^m§S>db é. 63.76 H$moQ>r BVHo$ Amho. `mdfu 2639 g^mgXm§Mr ^a nS>br AgyZ 767 
g^mgXm§Mr KQ> Pmë`m_wio EHy$U gd©gmYmaU g^mgXm§Mr g§»`m 42,345 BVH$s Pmbr Amho.

Á`m g^mgXm§Zr Cn{Z`_ H«$_m§H$ 11(ii) AÝd`o, 30 OyZ 2012 n`ªV {H$_mZ 50 g_^mJ KoÊ`mMr _`m©Xm nyU© Ho$bobr Zmhr Ë`m§Mo 
g^mgXËd aÔ H$ê$Z Ë`m g_^mJm§Mr aŠH$_ EH$m {d{eï> ImË`mV O_m Ho$bobr Amho. Varhr ̀ m aH$_oVyZ 3 dfm©n`ªV g^mgX Amnbr a>ŠH$_ 
naV KoD$ eH$VmV. _mM© 2013 n`ªV 66 g^mgXm§Zm Aem aH$_oMm naVmdm XoÊ`mV Ambm Amho.

❋ R odr g§H bZ :

31 _mM© 2013 ̀ m dfm©V ~±Ho$À`m R>odr é. 412 H$moQ>tZr dmTy>Z é. 3666 H$moQ>tda nmohmoMë`m AgyZ Ë`mV 13%Mr dmT> {XgyZ ̀ oVo. R>odtMo 
Vnerb nwT>rb à_mUo :

^mJ^m§Sdb :

R od Vnerc 31.03.2013 % dmT 31.03.2012 % dmT
~MV 757 20.6 660 20.3
Mmcy 182 5.0 174 5.3
_wXV 2,727 74.4 2,420 74.4
EHy$U 3,666 100.0 3,254 100.0

(é. H$moQ>rV)

JVdfuÀ`m ZdrZ emIm{dñVmamgmR>r Amdí`H$ R>aboë`m R>odtdarb ì`mOXamVrb dmT>rMo gH$mamË_H$ n[aUm_ `mdfuÀ`m àW_ ghm_mhrV 
{XgyZ Ambo. ̀ mÛmao Amboë`m {ZYtMo ̀ moOZm~Õ {Z`§ÌU H$aÊ`mgmR>r R>odtdarb ì`mOXamV Ë`m AZwf§JmZo Amdí`H$ Vo ~Xb H$aÊ`mV Ambo. 
_mJrb dfu d ̀ mdfu CKS>Ê`mV Amboë`m ZdrZ emIm§_Yrb _wXV R>odtMo à_mU Oar A{YH$ Varhr ~±Ho$Zo Mmby d ~MV ImË`mMo g§H$bZ à_mU 
(CASA) 25.6% amIÊ`mV ̀ e {_i{dbo Amho.

❋

d¡`{º$H$, ì`mnma/godm d CËnmXZ `m VrZhr joÌmVrb Am¡Úmo{JH$ dmT> `m dfm©V ApñWa am{hbr. Am¡Úmo{JH$ {Z{_©VrMm AmboI `§Xm CVaVr 
JVrerbVm Xe©dVmo. ̀ mMH$aVm ̀ §Xm ~±Ho$Zo Amnbo bj [aQ>ob H$Om©da H|${ÐV Ho$bo d ̀ mMrM \$bl¥Vr åhUOo ~±Ho$Mo ZŠV H$O©dmQ>n é. 444 
H$moQ>r BVHo$ Pmbo.

{ZYtMo Am`moOZ :

H O©{dVaUmMm Vnerb nwT rbà_mUo :

❋ H Om©Mm XOm© :

joÌ 2012-13 % 2011-12 %
d¡`{º$H$ 711 29.6 480 24.5
ì`mnma/godm 1,086 45.2 919 46.9
CËnmXZ 608 25.2 562 28.6
EHy$U 2,405 100.0 1,961 100.0

31.03.2013 31.03.2012
aŠH$_ % aŠH$_ %

T>mo~i AZwËnm{XV H$O} 94.48 3.93 47.28 2.41
ZŠV AZwËnm{XV H$O} 52.56 2.22 0 -

(é. H$moQ>rV)

(é. H$moQ>rV)

46

Annual Report
th96



XoemVrb Am{W©H$ pñWVr hr ~±{H$J joÌmH$aVm AmìhmZmË_H$ Amho. ̀ mdfu {d{dY H$maUm§_wio H$O©Xmam§Mr naV\o$S>rMr j_Vm Imbmdbr Amho. gZ 

2010-11 `m Am{W©H$ dfm©V gamgar R>odr d H$Om©Mo à_mU (CD Ratio) dmT>dÊ`mH$aVm H$O©dmQ>n àm_w»`mZo SME {d^mJmda H|${ÐV 

H$aÊ`mV Ambo Oo Ë`mdoiog Amdí`H$ hmoVo. na§Vw ̀ mnwT>rb H$mimV ~mOmanoR>oVrb Imbmdboë`m n[apñWVr_wio ømVrb H$mhr H$O} AZwËnm{XV 

hmoD$Z ̀ mdfu Ë`m§Mo à_mU 47.28 H$moQ>tdê$Z 94.48 H$moQ>tda nmohmoMbo Amho. Ago AgyZhr dmT>boë`m AZwËnm{XV H$Om©Vrb 50% H$Om©Mr 

dgwbr hr àW_ ghm_mhrV hmoB©b Aer eŠ`Vm Amho. VgoM hr gd© H$O} nyaH$ VmaUm§Zr ̀ wŠV AmhoV.

❋

MbZ\w$JdQ>m {Z`§{ÌV R>odÊ`mH$aVm VabVo g§~§Yr Amdí`H$ Vo Cnm` [aPìh© ~±Ho$Zo `mo{Obo AmhoV. YmoaUmË_H$ ì`mOXam_Ü`o H$nmV H$ê$Z 

VabVo_Ü`o dmT> H$aÊ`mgmR>r OMO d MSF Mr ì`dñWmàUmbr A_bmV AmUbr Jobr.

~m±S> _mH}$Q>_Yrb gH$mamË_H$ à{VgmXm_wio VgoM ì`dhmamVrb dmT>r_wio ̀ mdfu Jw§VdUwH$sdarb EHy$U Z\$m JVdfuÀ`m é. 2.55 H$moQ>rdê$Z 

é. 5.08 H$moQ>r BVH$m dmT>bm.

❋ ì`dgm`dmT rgmR r CMbbobr nmdbo

1) Am°Q mo ñdrn AH mD§ Q- `m ZdrZ `moOZoÛmao ~MV ImVoXmam§Zm Ë`m§À`m ImË`m_Yrb {ebH$sda dmT>rd naVmdm VgoM Amdí`H$ 

VabVoMr gw{dYm ̀ §Xm ~±Ho$Zo CnbãY H$ê$Z {Xbr Amho.

2) {ZpíM¨V - ghH$mar J¥hg§ñWmgmR>r ghO gwb^ Aem {~btJ godm ̀ m dfu ~±Ho$Zo CnbãY H$ê$Z {Xë`m AmhoV.

3) ñdßZnyVu - ̀ m Aën H$mimgmR>r am~{dboë`m ̀ moOZoÀ`m AmH$f©H$ d¡{eîQ>çm_wio ~±Ho$bm Ano{jV Agbobr ì`dhmad¥Õr Pmbr.

4) AmYma ImVo- AmYma H«$_m§H$mer ImVoXmamMo ImVo OmoS>ë`m_wio gaH$mar godm, J°gnwadR>m, nJma, {eî`d¥Îmr VgoM {Zd¥Îmr bm^ dJ¡ao 

AZoH$ godm§Mo bm^ AmVm Amnë`m ~±Ho$Ûmao ImVoXma KoD$ eH$Vrb.

5) Q´ °ìhb H mS ©- `§Xm ~±Ho$Zo A°pŠgg ~±Ho$~amo~a H$ama H$ê$Z doJdoJù`m MbZmVrb "Travel Currency card" Amnë`m J«mhH$m§Zm 

XoÊ`mMr gmo` CnbãY H$ê$Z {Xbr Amho.

6) ŠdrH ZoQ- B§Q>aZoQ> ~°qH$JMr gwadmV ""ŠdrH$ZoQ>'' ̀ m ZdrZ ̀ moOZoÛmao ~±Ho$Zo Ho$br AgyZ gÜ`m \$ŠV ñdV:Mo ImVo nmhÊ`mMr gmo` 

AgyZ bdH$aM AÝ` gw{dYm ̀ m ̀ moOZoÛmao nwadUo eŠ` hmoB©b.

7) ŠdrH _mo{~b- ̀ m ̀ moOZoÀ`m gd© àmW{_H$ Vm§{ÌH$ MmMÊ`m nyU© Pmë`m AgyZ ~±H$ bdH$aM ̀ m ̀ moOZoMrhr gwadmV H$aUma Amho.

❋ boImn[ajU- g§MmbH$ _§S>imVrb boImg{_Vr ~±Ho$À`m boImn[ajH$m§À`m AhdmbmMm AmT>mdm KoVo. ~±Ho$Mo AÜ`j ho `m g{_VrMo à_wI 

AgyZ BVa Hw$eb, {ZîUmV d H$m`XoVÁk g§MmbH$ ̀ m g{_Vrda AmhoV.

~±Ho$À`m 32 emIm ̀ m g_dVu (Concurrent) boImn[ajUmV Va Caboë`m BVa emIm ̀ m A§VJ©V boImn[ajUÛmao Vnmgë`m OmVmV. 31 

_mM© 2012 gmR>r [aPìh© ~±Ho$À`m {ZarjH$m§H$Sy>Z ~±Ho$À`m Am{W©H$ pñWVrMo boImn[ajU Ho$bo Jobo.

❋ d¡Ym{ZH  boIm n[ajH m§Mr {Z`wŠVr :

23 OyZ 2012 amoOr Pmboë`m ~±Ho$À`m dm{f©H$ gd©gmYmaU g^oV _o Ao.nr. g§P{Jar Am{U H§$. `m§Mr d¡Ym{ZH$ boImn[ajH$ åhUyZ {Z`wŠVr 

Jw§VdUyH  :
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Pmbr hmoVr. Ë`m§À`m \o$a{Z`wŠVrÀ`m AOm©Mm {dMma H$ê$Z d Ë`m§Mr `mo½` nmÌVm bjmV KoD$Z g§MmbH$ _§S>imZo nwT>rb dm{f©H$ gd©gmYmaU 

g^on`ªV Ë`m§À`m nwZ©{Z`wŠVrMm àñVmd _m§S>bm Amho.

❋

dfm©À`m gwadmVrbm ~±Ho$À`m 64 emIm hmoË`m Ë`mV AmUIr 5 emIm§Mr ̂ a nS>br AgyZ AmUIr 11 emIm CKS>Ê`mMm nadmZm ~±Ho$H$S>o Amho. 

df© 2013-14 gmR>r Amnë`m ~±Ho$Zo [aPìh© ~±Ho$H$S>o ZdrZ emIm§gmR>r AO© Ho$bm AgyZ Ë`mMm nadmZm bdH$aM Ano{jV Amho. ̀ m_wio _mM© 

2014 n`ªV ~±Ho$Mm emIm{dñVma 80 hÿZ A{YH$ hmoUma Amho.

❋AË`mYw{ZH  godm :

AmYw{ZH$ V§ÌkmZmV PnmQ>çmZo ~Xb hmoV AgVmV, Oo ~±{H$J d Am{W©H$ joÌmbmhr bmJy AmhoV. ̀ m gd© godm§Mm bm^ Amnë`m J«mhH$m§Zm {_imdm 

ho Joë`m 20 dfm©Vbo àË`oH$ ~±Ho$nwT>Mo Ü`o` Amho. ""Am°ZbmB©Z ~±qH$J'' ̀ m godo_wio ImVoXma ñdV:À`m ImË`mVrb aŠH$_ VnmgyZ nmhÿ eH$Vmo. 

B§Q>a~±H$ _mo~mB©b no_|Q> {gpñQ>_, ZoŠñQ> OoZ AmaQ>rOrEg² {gpñQ>_, MoH$ Q´>§Ho$eZ {gpñQ>_, S>o{~Q> H$mS>© d B§Q>aZoQ> ~±{H$J ̀ m gd© Z{dZ gw{dYm§Mm 

Adb§~ ~±Ho$À`m ImVoXmam§gmR>r Amnë`m ~±Ho$Zo gwé H$aÊ`mMo R>a{dbo Amho. `mdfu ""J«mhH$godm H$j'' H$m`©j_ H$ê$Z ~±Ho$~amo~a g§dmX 

gmYÊ`mMr ì`dñWmàUmbr H$m`m©pÝdV Pmbr Amho.

❋ ~«±S  {~pëS ¨J :

OZg§nH$m©À`m AZoH$ gmYZm§Mm ̀ eñdrnUo dmna H$ê$Z OmñVrV OmñV bmoH$m§n`©V ~±Ho$Mo Zmd d H$m`©àUmbr nmohmoMdÊ`mV ~±Ho$bm ̀ e {_imbo 

Amho. ̀ mgmR>r XÿaXe©Z Om{hamVr, ~g d JmS>çm§darb Om{hamVr, aoëdo nwbm§darb \$bH$ ̀ m§Mm Cn`moJ H$aÊ`mV Ambm. ̀ mMmM ̀ mo½` à{VgmX 

{_iyZ OZg§nH$m©V ̀ m{df`rMr XIb KoVbr Jobr.

VgoM AmH$medmUrda, ~±Ho$À`m A{YH$mè`m§Zr ""àíZ Vw_Mo- CÎma Am_Mo'' ̀ m H$m`©H«$_mA§VJ©V ~±Ho${df`r _m{hVr gmXa Ho$br.

❋gm_m{OH  ~m§{YbH s- gm_m{OH$ ~m§{YbH$sÀ`m ZmË`mZo Vw_Mr ~±H$ Zoh_rM {ejU, Amamo½`mH$aVm {ZYr d BVa Y_m©Xm` XoU½`m XoV AgVo.

❋ R od {d_m- ~±Ho$À`m R>odr ""R>od {d_m d H$O© h_r g§ñWodarb (DICGG) {d_m'' `moOZoÛmao gwa{jV AgyZ ~±Ho$Zo 31/03/2013 amoOr 

g§nboë`m dfm©V é. 3.30 H$moQ>tMm {d_m hám ̂ abm Amho.

❋eoR lr. em§Vmam_ _§Joe Hw bH Uu ì`m»`mZ_mbm

28 Owb¡ 2012 amoOr ""{H«${gb'' `m g§ñWoÀ`m H$m`©H$mar g§MmbH$ lr_Vr ê$nm Hw$S>dm `m§Mo ""^{dî`H$mimV ~±{H$J d Am{W©H$ joÌmgmR>r 

{Xem'' `m {df`mdarb ì`m»`mZ ~±Ho$Zo eoR> lr. em§Vmam_ _§Joe Hw$bH$Uu ì`m»`mZ_mbo A§VJ©V Am`mo{OV Ho$bo hmoVo Á`mbm lmoË`m§Mm CÎm_ 

à{VgmX {_imbm.

❋g^mgX H ë`mU {ZYr- g^mgXm§À`m 104 JwUd§V nmë`m§Mm gËH$ma ~±Ho$V\}$ 13 Am°ŠQ>mo~a 2012 amoOr H$aÊ`mV Ambm. ̀ m àg§Jr EHy$U 

é. 1.48 bmIm§Mo nwañH$ma Ë`m§À`m e¡j{UH$ d  H«$sS>m joÌmVrb H$m¡eë`m~Ôb XoÊ`mV Ambo.

`§Xm 27 g^mgXm§Zr d¡ÚH$s` `moOZoMm bm^ KoVbm ømgmR>r é. 4.43 bmI aH$_oMm {dZr`moJ Pmbm. 74 g^mgXm§Zr _mo\$V d¡ÚH$s` 

VnmgUr godoMm bm^ KoVbm.

H m`©{dñVma :
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Am^ma :

Amåhr Am_Mo gd© g^mgX, J«mhH$, H$_©Mmar, {hVqMVH$, BVa g§ñWm, Ë`m§Mo A{YH$mar ̀ m§Zr doimodoir {Xboë`m ghH$m`m©~Ôb Am^mar AmhmoV 

{deofV:

* [aPìh© ~±Ho$Mo _w»` _hmì`dñWmnH$, gaì`dñWmnH$, d BVa A{YH$mar dJ©

* H|$Ð d amÁ`gaH$maMo ghH$ma ImVo

* ghH$mar ~±H$ H$_©Mmar g§KQ>Zm

* d¡Ym{ZH$ boImn[ajH$ _| Ao. nr. g§P{Jar, MmQ>©S>© AH$mD§$Q>§Q>

* gd© boImn[ajH$

* H¥${f ~±{H$J _hm{dÚmb`, nwUo

* B§{S>`Z ~±H$ Agmo{gEeZ _w§~B©

* Z°eZb \o$S>aoeZ Am°\$ A~©Z ~±H$ d H«o${S>Q> gmo.{b. Zdr {Xëbr.

* _hmamï´> ñQ>oQ> H$mo-Am°n. ~±H$ \o$S>aoeZ d Agmo{gEeZ

* ~¥hZ _w§~B© H$mo-Am°n. ~±H$ Agmo{gEeZ, _w§~B©.

* H$m`XoVÁk, ñWmnË`emñÌk, A{^`§Vo

* d¥ÎmnÌo, XÿaXe©Z BVa _mÜ`o_ d Ë`m§Mo H$bmH$ma d ~±Ho$À`m àJVr_Ü`o Á`m§Zr àË`j dm AàË`jnUo hmV^ma bmdbm Ë`mgdm©Mo Amåhr 

_Z:nyd©H$ Am^ma _mZVmo.

g§MmcH$ _§S>imÀ`m dVrZo
{H emoa Hw iH Uu

AÜ`j

_w§~B©
{X. 18 _o 2013
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ANNEXURE 'I'

NAME OF THE BANK : NKGSB CO-OPERATIVE  BANK LTD.

REGISTERED OFFICE ADDRESS : 'LAXMI SADAN', 361, V.P. ROAD, GIRGAUM,

MUMBAI  400 004

TH
DATE OF REGISTRATION : SEPTEMBER 26 , 1917

TH
NO. & DATE OF RBI LICENCE : UBD MH 493 P,DT. 26  JULY, 1986

AREA OF OPERATION : STATES OF MAHARASHTRA, KARNATAKA, GUJARAT, 

GOA AND UNION TERRITORY OF DAMAN, DIU, DADRA & 

NAGAR HAVELI

(` in Cr)

ITEMS                                                                                                                 AS ON MARCH 31, 2013

No. of Branches  (including Head Office) 70

Membership :

No. of Regular members 42,345

No. of Nominal members 8,883

Paid Up Share Capital ` 63.76

Total Reserves and Funds ` 387.57

Deposits :

Current ` 182.40

Savings ` 756.39

Term ` 2,726.93

Total ` 3,665.72

Advances :

`

Unsecured ` 16.31

Total ` 2,404.53

Total % of Priority Sector 40.93%

Total % of Weaker Section 3.71%

Overdues ` 83.96

Overdue Percentage 3.49%

Investments ` 1,320.11

Audit Classification               'A'

Profit for the year ` 43.46

Working Capital ` 4,196.00

Total Staff 865

Secured  2,388.22
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No.  of  shares  held No.  of  Members %

1 - 49 0 -

50 - 100 13,802 32.59

101 - 500 14,940 35.29

501 - 5,000 10,766 25.42

5,001 and Above 2,837 6.70

TOTAL 42,345 100.00

  (` in Cr.)

Amount           No. of Accounts Amount of %

Deposits

Upto Rs. 10,000 2,17,965 57.42 1.57

Rs. 10,001    to Rs. 50,000 1,83,078 550.50 15.02

Rs. 50,001    to Rs. 1,00,000 90,683 699.17 19.07

Rs. 1,00,001 to Rs. 2,00,000 38,963 556.05 15.17

Rs. 2,00,001 to Rs. 10,00,000 27,463 1106.55 30.19

Rs. 10,00,001 and Above 2,727 696.03 18.98

TOTAL 5,60,879 3,665.72 100.00

(` in Cr.)

Amount No. of Accounts Balance O/s %

Upto Rs. 25,000 2,355 627.55 26.10

Rs. 25,001  to Rs. 1,00,000 1,777 7.91 0.33

Rs. 1,00,001 to Rs. 2,00,000 1,470 15.75 0.65

Rs. 2,00,001 to Rs. 10,00,000 5,357 192.49 8.00

Rs. 10,00,001 to Rs. 25,00,000 2,284 295.44 12.29

Rs. 25,00,001 to Rs. 50,00,000 823 238.96 9.94

Rs. 50,00,001 and Above 683 1026.43 42.69

TOTAL 14,749 2404.53 100.00

TABLE NO. 1

st
Distribution of Shareholders as on 31  March, 2013.

TABLE NO. 2

st
Distribution of Deposit Accounts as on 31  March, 2013.

TABLE NO. 3

Distribution of Advances  as on 31st March, 2013.
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PERFORMANCE AND BUDGET ESTIMATE

PARTICULARS   ACTUAL
  2013

  ACTUAL
  2012

  % 
OVER
2012

INCREASE   BUDGET
2014

  BUDGET
   2013

% INCREASE
OVER

ACTUAL 2013

ASSETS AND LIABILITIESA]

INCOME AND EXPENDITUREB]

INCOME

EXPENDITURE

Interest Paid

Establishment

Others

Provision for Taxes

Provisions

Net Profit

TOTAL

(` in lacs)

(` in lacs)

35,327

22,549

3,226

3,186

1,814

951

3,601

35,327

43,310

27,600

3,900

4,520

1,600

1,090

4,600

43,310

PARTICULARS   ACTUAL
  2013

ACTUAL
2012

% 
OVER
2012

INCREASE   BUDGET
2014

  BUDGET
   2013

% INCREASE
OVER
2013

42,506

27,621

4,128

4,404

1,002

1,005

4,346

42,506

20

22

28

38

(45)

6

21

20

53,100

34,000

5,000

5,785

1,800

1,415

5,100

53,100

25

23

21

31

80

41

18

25

LIABILITIES

5,328 Share Capital 6,100 6,376 20 8,000 25

36,144 Reserves 39,873 38,757 7 43,174 11

0 Net Distributable 1 1 1

Surplus

41,472 45,974 45,134 9 51,175 13

3,25,366 Deposits 3,90,000 3,66,572 13 4,60,000 25

0 Borrowings 0 1,399

5,517 Sundries 5,593 6,495 18 6,625 2

3,72,355 TOTAL 4,41,567 4,19,600 13 5,17,800 23

ASSETS

1,51,973 Liquid Assets 1,74,342 1,52,491 0 1,81,759 19

1,96,124 Advances 2,40,000 2,40,453 23 3,00,000 25

17,673 Fixed Assets 19,722 18,721 6 26,571 42

6,585 Sundries 7,503 7,935 21 9,470 19

3,72,355 TOTAL 4,41,567 4,19,600 13 5,17,800 23
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We at NKGSB have certain beliefs that …. 

We don’t need to be the biggest to be the best.

The more success we achieve the more humble and devoted we need to become towards our customers.

Real risk lies in riskless business.

With these strong beliefs, we are taking incremental steps to reach our goals, step-by-step. We have crossed 

6,000 Cr. mark. As we approach the centenary, we are targeting to have 100 profitable branches with business mix 

crossing 10,000 Cr. While growing with age, we know that the best cure for ageing is learning. Learning from our 

experience as well as that of peer banks, we acknowledge that one, who tries to do everything, achieves nothing. 

We have also learnt that in this fast changing world, once an idea is lost on time, it is hard to regain.

Yes, we are a bit late in introducing some of the well-liked ways of modern banking – Net-Banking and Mobile 

Banking. We are happy to have adapted  to Net-Banking by introducing ‘QuickNet’ and are fully geared up to 

launch Mobile Banking – ‘QuickMobil’.  The paradox of this wired world is that while we get connected 

electronically, we become less connected emotionally. But we are deep-rooted to our core values and will always 

ensure that the personal touch that we have imbibed in us will never be disregarded. 

Risk taking is an integral part of any profitable business. The skill lies in being prudent while taking risk. The 

external factors beyond our control can erupt sometimes, and the year gone by is probably one such year. Our 

NPAs have gone up. However, the rise of Gross NPA by 47 Cr. when seen in the light of rise of 1,035 Cr. advances 

in last three years strengthens our belief that we need not take a risk of doing riskless business. We are confident 

that it is very much under control because of our adherence to the credit policy formed which is reviewed from time 

to time, our strong monitoring cell and a robust recovery mechanism. With enough backing of securities, we are 

sure of recovering over 50% of the increased NPAs in the first half of the current year. Introduction of concept of 

relationship manager will not only aid in this task but will also help in understanding the needs and challenges faced 

by the customers to ensure a stitch in time saves nine.   

My team of experienced executives and the dedicated staff guided by our learned Board of directors gives me 

enough courage to reiterate that we will develop a sound network of 100 profitable branches crossing a business 

mix of 10,000 Cr. while proudly entering our centenary soon.

•

•

•
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At NKGSB  we are committed...

Chintamani Nadkarni

Managing Director














